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DISCLAIMER 

All articles in this Report are, unless otherwise stated, the original work of the contributors. Advertising material will be accepted for publication on the condition that it does not defame 
any person. Fremantle SLSC accepts no responsibility for accuracy of advertising material submitted for publication but will make every effort to verify information. 
Notice to Advertisers - Trade Practices Act 1974 

Advertisers are reminded that the Trade Practices Act 1974 provides severe penalties for false or misleading advertising. It is not possible to check the accuracy of claims or 
quality of service offered by advertisers, and therefore the responsibility must lie with the person or companies submitting material for publication in their advertisements. 
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COVER PHOTOS 

Fremantle SLSC was the 2019 winner of the inaugural State Pool Rescue Championship trophy. At the end of the first day, 
after the Seniors competition, Fremantle was second place behind Trigg Island. But with our depth of Masters and Juniors 
competitors, the second day saw Fremantle finishing strongly on 576 points, overtaking Trigg Island on 519.5 points. 

At the 2019 SLSWA Awards of Excellence, John Summers won the Assessor of the Year, and Mike Shaw won both the 
Trainer of the Year and Volunteer of the Year awards. At the end of the evening, our Club was presented with the coveted 
Patrol Club of the Year (I.T. Birtwistle) trophy. 
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President’s Report 
Cath Morgan 

I t’s been another very successful season at Fremantle Surf Life 
Saving Club. This year our member numbers reached an all-time 

high with over 1530. This continued growth in numbers is a fantastic 
indicator that we are doing some great things at our club.  

In March 2018, the Board completed the Fremantle Surf Life Saving 
Club Strategic Plan. The plan describes the club’s strategic vision, 
values and key objectives for seasons 2018 through to 2023. The 
Club’s Board, together with our managers and administration have 
been working hard to make improvements in the five key objective 
areas of Financial Viability, Participation, Member Development, 
Sustainability and Engagement. 

FINANCIAL VIABILITY 

We are continuing to update and improve our accounting system to 
enable more efficient and streamlined reporting. Our marketing 
committee has been revamped to increase the range of members 
and diversity of skills, and a system developed to better 
acknowledge our sponsors.  

PARTICIPATION 

To ensure a smooth transition between seasons, we have improved 
our succession planning and position descriptions have been 
reviewed, updated and made available for members on the Club 
website. It was also great to see an increase in club members 
participating in training, as well as more training sessions being made 
available.  

MEMBER DEVELOPMENT 

This season, the Surf Sports committee implemented a coaching 
review program, whereby the Director and Manager of Surf Sports, 
team captains and coaches attended meetings to collaboratively 
plan training sessions, encourage participation and address any 
issues. We teamed experienced patrolling members with new or less 
experienced patrol captains to provide support and encouragement. 
Similarly, our new trainers were matched with experienced trainers 
to provide support and improve consistency.  

SUSTAINABILITY 

Due to the growing membership base, a stronger focus has been 
placed on the Club’s investments and expenditure to ensure 
members’ funds are being appropriately managed and annual 
budgets met. To ensure the wellbeing of all members and 
employees, the Club participated in the Peer Support program 
implemented by SLSWA and now have three of the sixteen trained 
volunteer Peer Support Officers in WA. In order to continually 
develop and improve, we have initiated a member satisfaction survey 
to receive feedback on the club’s performance.  

ENGAGEMENT 

All new members are welcomed to the club, either at our registration 
day, afternoon tea for new member’s or our senior members, or 
through a personal email from the Club Captain. We are continuing 
to build relationships with the community by inviting key 
representatives such as City of Fremantle councillors and Port Beach 
Polar Bears members to club events such as the HMAS Sydney 
Memorial Service. We hold regular gatherings for our past members 
where we encourage them to re-engage with the Club and are 
continuing to work with local and federal government 
representatives to improve parking in the precinct.  

While the strategic direction of the club is critical, it is equally 
important to manage day to day operations. Our Managers and their 

teams work very hard and continue to impress the board with their 
dedication to the club. The provision of professional, skilled patrols 
along our 4km stretch of beach plays a significant role in our club. I 
thank the entire lifesaving and education team and all patrol 
members for ensuring our compliance in this area. There is a vast 
array of other voluntary work undertaken by our members. Thanks to 
our managers, coaches, officials, water safety, age group managers, 
committee members, area captains, canteen and uniform shop 
helpers and everyone else who volunteered their time for the club 
this season. Special thanks to Dave Carbon and his team for 
completing the “Lawn Project” on time and way under budget.  

CLUB MEMBER OF THE YEAR 

It was an honour to present this year’s best Club Member Award to 
David Carbon.  Since joining the club in 2011, David has been a skilled 
and reliable patrol member averaging 34 hours per year. He is a 
regular on the Christmas day voluntary patrol and has been 
invaluable in a number of our most serious first aid incidents. He 
always contributes at club events such as the Port to Pub and Freo 
Ocean Classic, busy bees and has entertained us at social events. 
David is a skilled and talented sportsman with an impressive record 
at club, state and Aussies Championships and is a great supporter 
and motivator for surf sports competitors of all ages. He excels as 
one of our most popular and competent trainers and has an ability to 
engage with his students and bring out their best. This season he led 
the “Lawn Project”, in charge of removing the huge build up of sand 
from the club lawn. Dave spent many hours and his own money on 
the project, saving the club a fortune. Congratulations to David, a 
deserving recipient of this prestigious award.  

AWARDS OF EXCELLENCE 

Well done to this year’s SLSWA Awards of Excellence nominees. We 
are very proud of the following individual nominees from Fremantle - 

Youth Lifesaver of the Year – James Currey 

Administrator of the Year – Erin Jameson (finalist) 
Trainer of the Year – Mike Shaw (finalist) 
Assessor of the Year – John Summers (finalist) 
Coach of the Year – Jack Dowie  
AGL Volunteer of the Year – Mike Shaw (finalist) 
Support Operations Volunteer of the Year – Liam Burke (finalist) 

Club Member of the Year, Dave Carbon 
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Particular congratulations to those nominees who were selected as 
finalists in their category. In addition, the Club was selected as a 
finalist in the following categories -  

Community Program of the Year 
Patrol Club of the Year 
Lavan Club of the Year 

Our club took four major awards at 
the Awards of Excellence on the 8th 
of June. John Summers was named Assessor of the Year, Mike Shaw 
won both AGL Volunteer of the Year and Trainer of the Year and we 
also took the coveted Patrol Club of the Year (IT Birtwistle) Trophy. 
Both John and Mike will go on to represent SLSWA later this year at 
the SLSA Awards of Excellence.   

 

NEXT SEASON 

It is wonderful to see our young leaders stepping up into more 
formal roles and we will continue to encourage and support them to 
succeed. Recognition of our volunteers and encouraging more 
members to help out and share the workload as our club grows will 
also be a focus. We will be actively seeking new sponsors and 
grants and continuing our work towards ensuring that we are 
communicating effectively within all areas of the club.  

Finally, I would like to thank the Board, managers, administrators, 
club members and my family for their incredible support during my 
term as President. I have worked hard to be an enthusiastic and 
approachable leader and do my part in setting the club up for 
continued future success. I am now looking forward a bit of a break. 
Who knows, I might even dust off my ski and go for a paddle…….. 
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2019 SLSWA Awards of Excellence Nominees 

Lavan Club of the Year (finalist) 

Our Club has driven continuous improvement this year in line with 
the Strategic Plan, in areas of financial viability, member 
participation and development, sustainability and engagement with 
the community. In particular, improvement in governance has seen 
creation of better processes for running the Club, and leadership 
development has been a key focus area this year. 

Patrol Club of the Year (finalist) 

Our Club undertook 9,890 hours of patrols through 14 patrol teams 
this season, a record for our Club. Our large number of Youth are 
being mentored on separate Youth Patrols and we have introduced 
new Youth Vice Captain roles. The Drone program was formally 
introduced this year, and we have trained a number of accredited 
Drone pilots. Training whilst on patrol has been a focus this season 
with the introduction of the rescue manikin and next season ,we will 
provide a set of first aid scenario cards to allow our members to 
refresh and improve their skills. 

AGL Volunteer of the Year (Mike Shaw, finalist) 

Mike was a Patrol Vice Captain this year. He was 
also our Surf Sports Manager, and coordinated 
the Club Championships. He was also very 
active in Bronze training and assessing, as well 
as commercial training, and the Club’s 
Multicultural Beach Safety Program. At State 
level, Mike chaired the State Education Advisory 
Committee and sat on the National Committee. 

He has produced the Club’s Annual Report for the last three years. 

Youth Lifesaver of the Year (James Currey) 

James has been an outstanding member and 
contributor. He gained his Bronze in an intensive 
winter course and followed with his IRB crew 
qualification.  He has been a Vice Captain of his 
patrol as part of the mentoring program and was 
an Age Group Manager for the nippers. James 
has assisted in the setup of every carnival held at 
Fremantle and has volunteering at some 
carnivals at other beaches. He has shown an 
interest developing the Club’s youth through 
becoming a trainer for the youth SRC courses. He has rowed surf 
boats, is a board paddler and has begun competing in IRB this 
season as a crew and patient. 

Administrator of the Year (Erin Jameson, finalist) 

In the past year, Erin has digitised and 
significantly improved our club’s online booking 
system. This has given our members a 
convenient and easy to use system to manage 
memberships, book competition entries, 
purchase tickets to social functions and sign up 
to education and requalification courses. It has 
not only made our members’ lives easier, but 

has also streamlined the administrative burden normally required 
around these tasks. Furthering our club’s digital presence, Erin also 
coordinates all of our club’s social media profiles and prepares our 
internal weekly newsletter to disseminate important information to 
our members. Erin has been critical from a marketing perspective 
as well, being a member of the team that managed the Fremantle 
Ocean Classic for a second year running.  

Coach of the Year (Jack Dowie) 

Jack is a Level 2 Coach and has provided over 360 
hours of coaching to our athletes. This year, as Surf 
Sports Director, he implemented a Coaching Panel 
and developed a plan for 13 new coaches in all 
disciplines. He has been a strong advocate of 
developing Coaching Plan for all disciplines to 
prevent over-training and injury. He competes 
every year at State and National level, and is an 
outstanding role model to our Coaches. 

Trainer of the Year (Mike Shaw, finalist) 

Mike’s main involvement was as Bronze 
Training Coordinator. He provided over 140 
hours of training across four separate Bronze 
groups and worked to mentor two new 
Bronze course coordinators.  He also 
participated in eight Bronze assessments at 
other clubs. This year, Mike upgraded his Cert 
IV to be able to continue commercial training, 

and gained his Facilitator ART qualification.  

Assessor of the Year (John Summers, finalist) 

As Lifesaving and Education Director, John was 
accountable for the annual skills check process 
for the Club, covering Bronze Medallion, IRB 
driver, IRB crew and RWC. John was personally 
responsible for conducting Bronze Medallion 
skills checks for around 100 Bronze members, in 
addition to overseeing the skills checks for 40 
IRB drivers, 80 IRB crew and 10 jet ski crew. 
John also assisted with assessing an SRC 
course internally within our Club. John has also been one of only a 
few active assessors for IRB driver and crew and RWC, participating 
in skills checks and assessments at Secret Harbour and Cottesloe. 
In the area of higher awards, John gained his Facilitator award in 
Pain Management. 

Community Program of the Year (finalist) 

In its fifth year, this program, run by Matt 
Elliott and Mike Shaw, hosted over 60 
students from Aranmore Catholic College 
and Lynwood SHS -  recent immigrants to 
Australia. Many have never seen the ocean, 
or have limited awareness of the dangers 
of the surf. We presented in-class sessions 

followed by on-beach activities to promote safety and awareness 
of the role of surf lifesavers. Our philosophy is that it is better to 
prevent the problem through awareness, than to make the rescue. 
The students are then able to pass that knowledge to their parents. 

Support Operations Volunteer of the Year (Liam Burke, finalist) 

Liam was nominated for his proactive adoption, 
participation and promotion of SLSWA’s new 
Mental Health program. Liam was involved in 
the first group of training to become a Peer 
Supporter and has since provided support to 
our Club members, members from other Clubs 
as well as fellow Peer Supporters. Liam has 
also worked collaboratively with the SLSWA 
Lifesaving Development Officer; for the benefit 
of the state as a whole. 
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Director of Finance Report 
Tony Silipo CPA BCOM 

I  am pleased to present the Audited Financial Report for the Year 
ended 31 March 2019. 

Result for the Year 

The Club has recorded a net profit of $98,290 for the eleven months 
ended 31 March 2019 after amortisation, depreciation and 
accounting adjustments, but before capital expenditure.   

The net profit prior to the accounting adjustments mentioned above 
was $ 95,888. 

It should be noted the increase in net profit to the previous year is 
mainly due to an increase in membership with income from 
membership fees increasing by $26,612, and donations increasing 
by $27,881, due to the recognition of equipment donations from 
SLSWA and AGL of $27,844 

It should also be noted that this year being an eleven month 
reporting period and changing our year end from April to March has 
had a positive effect on the net profit as April is normally a month 
with low income and usually operates at a loss.. 

Our major sources of income were: 

 Membership    $ 210,911 

 Sales -  bar, canteen & uniform shop $  96,791 

 Donations    $  66,877 

 Sponsorship    $  44,273 

 Club rental and hire   $  36,396 

 Education services   $  14,636 

 Social & fundraising   $  14,179 

The major areas of expenditure were: 

Administration    $ 167,566  

Building Services   $ 109,033  

COGS – bar, canteen & uniform shop $  75,868 

Competition expenses   $  28,954 

Social & fundraising   $  23,464 

Members insurance   $  25,180 

During the eleven month period to 31 March 2019 there was $55,007 
of capital expenditure, the main items that were purchased or 
donated during the year are as follows: 

6 Rescue boards 

Rescue training manikin 

3 Nipper racing boards 

3 Senior racing Malibu boards 

Deposit on IRB Thundercat 

1 ATV 

18 soft nipper boards 

Sundry lifesaving equipment 

Statement of Financial Position 

As at 31 March 2019, the Club’s net assets were valued at $2,075,471.   

 The Club’s cash assets amounted to $290,411 as at 31 March 2019.   

Looking Forward 

The Club is aware of the challenging economic environment we are 
currently experiencing, and we are always looking for new ideas to 
further expand the revenue base. In doing so, we are mindful of 
restrictions we are now facing in relation to building space, 
equipment and training resources. 

As always, we are mindful that we ensure our members have good 
and reliable equipment and services available to them on a day to 
day basis. However, these needs must also be juggled with the 
knowledge that sufficient funds must be put aside for future 
building maintenance costs. The club is guided by the long term 
maintenance schedule in place for the building and is budgeting to 
ensure there is sufficient funds for this capital expenditure, along 
with maintaining an ongoing program of repairing and replacing 
equipment. 

Acknowledgement 

I would like to thank all of our members who donate their time, 
expertise and goods to the club -  whilst this may not be reflected in 
the financial accounts of the club your contribution is invaluable as it 
frees up our cash resources to be used providing members 
equipment and services.  

Finally I would also like to thank our administration staff Jo, Dee and 
Erin, their knowledge and support throughout the year is very much 
appreciated. 
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Registrar’s Report 
Jo Jameson 

 Male Female 18-19 17-18 16-17 15-16 14-15 

Active (18+) 107 56 163 148 143 168 132 

Active (15-18) 38 71 109 99 77 74 50 

Active Reserve 18 6 24 26 27 9 11 

Long Service 17 8 25 29 19 17 19 

Cadet (13-15) 53 52 105 106 106 87 57 

Total 233 193 426 408 372 355 267 

Lifesaving Membership 

Other Membership Categories 

Junior Membership 

 Male Female 18-19 17-18 16-17 15-16 14-15 

Under 6 & 7 80 81 161 144 134 135 120 

Under 8 32 44 76 81 73 72 83 

Under 9 36 44 80 72 81 65 77 

Under 10 40 36 76 57 63 77 66 

Under 11 31 29 60 56 64 69 52 

Under 12 36 27 63 54 54 53 62 

Under 13 25 27 52 41 57 60 48 

Total 280 288 568 505 526 531 508 

 Male Female 18-19 17-18 16-17 15-16 14-15 

Probationary 19 24 43 40 38 32 40 

Award 47 31 78 82 91 95 99 

Associate 211 193 404 345 318 337 333 

Total 277 248 580 467 447 464 472 

Fremantle’s overall membership 
numbers grew significantly from last 

year—in particular, our nipper 
numbers were up over 12%  and 

remains one of the largest groups in 
Western Australia. 
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HMAS Sydney II Memorial 

E 

ach Year in November, our Club holds a special ceremony to 
remember the officers and crew of the HMAS Sydney II, which 

was lost on November 19th 1941 with all 645 crew members in an 
epic sea battle with the German raider ‘Kormoran’. We hold the 
ceremony on Leighton Beach in front of our assembled nippers, 
parents and seniors, and recall that many of the crew of HMAS 
Sydney II spent time at Leighton and our surf club when not on 
active duty. In February 1941, the crew of HMAS Sydney II presented 
our club with a hand-made reel, which in the day was the prime 
means of rescuing people from the surf. The reel is displayed each 
year and plays a central part in the ceremony. 

This year, attendees to the memorial service included Commander 
Peter Mellick and Chaplain Lynette Emery of the Royal Australian 
Navy based at HMAS Stirling, the President of Surf Life Saving WA, 
Craig Smith-Gander, Councillors Doug Thompson and Bryn Jones 

representing the City of Fremantle, Member for Bicton, Lisa 
O’Malley MLA, Port Beach Polar Bears President Suzette Felton and 
Secretary Trevor Pedler, Fremantle SLSC Vice Patron Alex Bajada 
and Fremantle SLSC Life members. 

A welcome to country was offered by Youth member Clara Moody, 
before Commander Peter Mellick gave a moving account of the 
tragic story of the ambush and ensuing battle off the West 
Australian coast. Another of our Youth leaders, TJ Chong Sue, read 
aloud the Surf Life Savers prayer. 

Wreaths were then presented to a waiting surf boat crew who took 
them out and laid them on the surface of the water, before raising 
oars in salute. 

Afterwards, all attendees and  guests gathered for a morning tea. 

Chaplain Lynette Emery (left) talking to the assembled nipper and parent 
group, with Club President Cath Morgan, SLSWA President Craig Smith-

Gander (centre) and Commander Peter Mellick  from HMAS Stirling 

Young lifesavers form the honour guard, carry the HMAS Sydney II reel and 
present floral wreaths to be laid on the water by surf boat crew 

T 

he Fremantle Ocean Classic is now in its second year of the new 
branding and this year’s event drew a very reasonable 184 

competitors. This number was down a little on last year due to a 
clash with an Open Water Series event on the same day. 

Feedback from competitors is that they like our event, over the Open 
Water Series, as we offer cash prizes. The prizes on offer (for first, 
second and sometimes third places, for both male and female 
competitors) were donated by -  

• Finz Swimwear (3200m swim) -  $100 / $50 /$25 

• Mint Real Estate (1600m swim) -  $100 / $50 / $25 

• Coast Port Beach (4 x 500m team swim) -  vouchers 

• Channel Nine (1600m board) -  $50 / $25 

• Orange Box (2km run) -  Vouchers 

• Strange Company -  $100 voucher 

In addition, the event was sponsored by our great partners, Aussie 
Natural Spring Water, Pluk café and Brumbies East Fremantle. 

The events program was the same as last year. Overall winners of 
the headline events were -  

• 1600m swim -  Nicholas Rollo and Chloe Green 

• 3200m swim -  Rhys Mainstone and Jaime Bowler 

Some outstanding performance by Fremantle club members 
included Finn Hussey (second in 15-19M 1600m swim and sixth 
overall), Tracey Shaw (first in 50-54F 1600m swim, and 8th overall), 
Archie Davis (first in U15M 3200m swim and 6th overall), 

The 4 x 500m team event was dominated by Fremantle club 
members, with the winners being “Just in Time” (including Liam 
Pizzirani, Kelton Rothnie, Maeve McKenna and Sienna Menin), 
followed “Freo Masters” (Fi Carroll, Brad Ravenscroft, Matt Elliott and 
Tracey Shaw). 

Similarly, the 1600m board paddle contained exclusively Fremantle 
club members, and was won by Mark Dropulich, closely followed by 
newcomer German Bucheli, and Ethan Shaw third. And the 2km run 
was won by U15F Maeve McKenna, from Cherie McLachlan. 

The FOC Planning Committee is already hard at work, planning for 
next year’s event and bring a new expanded program to a wider 
audience on February 15th, 2020. Put it in your calendars ! 

The ‘Fremantle Ocean Classic’ 

Winners of the 4 x 500m teams - “Just in Time” 
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Club Captain’s Report 
Anne- Marie Nunes 

D 

uring the season, Fremantle Surf Life Saving Club has 
continued to build on its core values through continuing to 

excel in providing life saving services, promoting ‘one club’ through 
teamwork and ensuring the wellbeing of members. The innovation 
and drive of our members to achieve these objectives has been 
demonstrated across all areas of our Club – governance, lifesaving, 
education, development and competition. 

This season has seen an increased 
focus on team participation and 
member development which is 
reflected with the implementation of 
Youth Captains. This season’s 
inaugural Youth Captains were Clara 
Moody, TJ Chong Sue, (Deputies: 
Meesha Rothnie and Nick Dart), 
Phoebe Ashworth, Kelton Rothnie, Jack 
Hadley and Maeve McKenna. 

An increased focus on participation in 
club activities saw a new initiative 
undertaken by the social committee, 
whereby a social event was held by 
each surf sports team throughout the 
season which was whole-of-club 
orientated to further encourage 
interactions between all areas of the 
Club (nippers, youth, seniors, surf 
sports etc.). It was great to see large turnouts to these events and I 
look forward to seeing the popularity of these grow in the future. 

Surf sports continued to grow and develop whereby, along with 
more training sessions being made available, it was great to see an 
increase in member’s participation. This is a reflection of our 
Coaches’ engagement with members to create a fun and inclusive 
environment. 

The Lifesaving and Education committee also continued to ensure 
its objective of high-performing and high-quality patrols, whereby at 
the annual Patrol Captain workshop, examples of scenarios and 
activities were provided to Patrol Captains to assist in keeping their 
patrol members engaged and promote continual improvement. 
Additionally, to encourage member development, experienced 
patrolling members teamed up with new or less experienced Patrol 
Captains to provide support and encouragement. These initiatives 

were supported by the efforts our strong team of Trainers who 
continue to ensure that our members demonstrate high quality skills 
through their education and training. 

In line with the Club’s focus on member wellbeing this season, 
Fremantle participated in the Peer Support program implemented 
by SLSWA and have three of sixteen trained volunteer Peer Support 
Officers across the State. 

The Board continued its endeavour to 
promote and develop good corporate 
governance by undertaking a review of the 
Club’s Strategic Plan, which was 
implemented last season. This was a great 
opportunity for the Board to reflect on areas 
for improvement and the Club’s 
achievements whilst ensuring we are 
embodying the Club’s vision, mission and 
values.  

Going forward into the 2019-20 season, the 
Club is focused on extending its life saving 
services to match community needs. As the 
area around the Club continues to be 
developed and more residents move into 

North Fremantle, the Club wishes to 
ensure it maintains its community 
presence and engage the community. This 
involves continuing the development and 

growth of the drone program so that the coverage of this service can 
be extended. Additionally, we want to grow and develop our 
members. This involves expanding our training options available to 
members by encouraging them to upskill through achieving higher 
awards and continuing to offer a high standard of training.  

As Club Captain, I’d like to take this opportunity to thank all our Club 
volunteers, including Age Group Managers, Officials, Coaches, 
Managers, Administration Staff, Trainers, Committee Members, Patrol 
Captains, Vice Captains and the Board members, for their tireless 
efforts across all areas of the Club. Our Club has continued to grow 
in size and capacity due to your commitment, teamwork, initiative, 
integrity and service. You are our Club’s greatest asset and the 
reason the Club continues to grow and is a valued member of the 
community.  

Amber Kinnane was presented with the Jason Shortte Memorial 
Trophy for Best U19 Club Member by Club Captain Annie Nunes 

Vale Ron Cochrane (Life Member, 1985) 
Ron Cochrane passed away in February 2019, aged 74 years. Joined the Port Beach Surf Club in 
1970, received his Bronze Medallion in 1971 and was awarded Best Club Member in 1972.  Ron 
was a dedicated patrol member and competed in beach flags, surf boats as sweep and march 
past events. He held various Club positions -  Instructor, Ambulance Officer, Boat Captain, Patrol 
Captain, Patrol Officer and Club Secretary. With the formation of Fremantle Surf Club, Ron was 
the inaugural Gear Steward.  He was awarded Best Patrol Member and then became Patrol 
Officer in 1980-81, Chief Instructor and then Treasurer for four years (1984-88).  He was 
awarded Best Club Member in 1984.  He was Bar Director in 1990-91. Ron is recognised for his 
achievements in organising and conducting various fundraising activities, his assistance over a 
long time in the instruction of club members and in the maintenance of the clubrooms. 

Ron moved to Thailand in the 1990’s and only returned to Perth late last year. Following a 
relatively short period of illness, he sadly passed away. Ron leaves behind his wife Nang, and 
sisters June (Thomas) and Leanne (Onions) who were also club members. 

He will be remembered for his dedication and willingness to help others.  
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Lifesaving Report 
Liam Burke 

T 

he club exists because of the vital lifesaving services we 
deliver, so firstly I want to say a massive thank you to all of our 

members that either patrol, assist our members to patrol, or train 
our current and future lifesavers.  

It was another successful patrolling year, with 411 members 
clocking up 9,890 patrolling hours including 1,300 water safety 
hours—a new record for the Club and 18% more than last year. The 
season was challenging at times and saw lifesavers perform 28 
rescues, mainly via IRB (13) and Board (12), which is three times more 
than last season. First Aid treatments were down significantly on 
last season to 86 incidents, with stingers proving to be less of an 
issue. Preventative actions were up slightly on last season at 313, 
which shows we continue to looking for potential problems before 
they occur.  

Members continued to go above and beyond their rostered patrols 
this season by volunteering for other patrols, earning additional 
awards, assisting at carnivals and external events, volunteering for 
abalone patrols, and responding to out of hours incidents. 

This year saw the introduction of the Westpac Life Saver Rescue 
Drone service to complement our existing patrol operations. We 
now have eight operators either partially or fully accredited, which 
allowed us to log over 800 flight minutes from 43 flights. The drone 
program will continue to develop in the coming seasons and will 
provide us with greater visibility over the patrolling areas, timely 
responses to issues, and allow us to cover our four kilometre stretch 
of coastline more efficiently. 

Funding from Government, SLSWA, SLSA and the Club has allowed 
us to purchase key items this season such as new boards and 
rescue tubes, a new IRB motor, and a new ATV, as well as maintain 
our existing resources. Having such a high standard of patrol 
equipment provides our lifesavers the best chance of responding 
effectively when a situation arises. 

Each season the Lifesaving Committee selects a Best Patrol 
member based on criteria such as upholding the Club’s values, 
being a positive SLSA ambassador, meeting patrol requirements, 
and being competent in the delivery and training of lifesaving 
services. The 2018-19 Best Patrol Member is Kelly Aitken-Fox, for 
her commitment to making patrols valuable and enjoyable, her time 
devoted to training Bronze courses and conducting skills 
maintenance checks for over 400 members, and for being a strong 
role model around the club for younger and older members. 

Special thanks to our Patrol Captains and Vice Captains who 
continue to step up, educate, lead, and motivate our teams. Thanks 
also to the Lifesaving and Education Committee, in particular John 
Summers (Director of Lifesaving and Education), Liz Pitts (Patrol 
Officer), Jordan Dowie (Patrol Officer), Kieren Smith (Mobile 
Equipment and Radio Officer) and Jo Niven (First Aid Officer). 

 

Winner of the Best Patrol Member award this year was Kelly Aitken-Fox, 
receiving the trophy from Director Lifesaving and Education, John Summers 

Club members undergoing training in the use of drones for patrol 
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Education Report 
 Kelly Aitken- Fox 

T 

he 2018-19 season certainly kept our dedicated trainers and 
assessors busy across all of the awards. Thank you to Peter 

Hastie, Mark Regel, Larry Tilbury, John Price, Rachelle Doyle, Mike 
Shaw, Pip Hawson, John Skipsey, Cath Morgan, Jay Morgan, John 
Summers, Ben Pink, Jodie Pink, Anne-Marie Nunes, Elisabeth Pitts, 
Jack Palmer, Kitty Eichner, Jess Klessens, Dave Carbon, Jo Niven 
and Ian Clarke. 

A more organised approach was taken to Bronze proficiencies this 
season, involving prebooked timeslots and rotating through 
separate stations, and which we look forward to refining in the 
future. A total of 448 proficiencies were conducted this season, the 
most we have ever done and a reflection of our outstanding growth 
in patrol numbers over recent years. 

Fremantle also continues to be a top ‘training club’, with 248 new 
awards gained this season (up from 231 last season). The table 
above shows the breakdown of awards - we continue to benefit 
from our growth in Nipper numbers in the last few years, now 
showing as increasing numbers of candidates in the Bronze, SRC 
and IRBC awards particularly. 

As a result of the growth in numbers, we conducted four separate 
Bronze courses this year (the most we have ever done). We have 
continued offering ‘intensive’ one-week courses, which greatly suits 
school students as they are run entirely in the September and 
January school holidays, in addition to our ‘full’ eight-week courses. 
We also gained two new course coordinators – Kelly Aitken-Fox ran 
the September intensive course, and Dave Carbon coordinated a 
full course catering for a group of Masters (30+) candidates – both 
courses were real successes. Mike Shaw coordinated the other two 
Bronze Medallion courses, one full course and the January intensive 
course. Between the four courses, Fremantle can now boast 65 new 
Bronze Medallion members on patrols. 

We have renewed our efforts to improve numbers of members with 
higher awards – a process that has not been helped by lack of 
clarity in several of those awards, such Advanced Resuscitation and 
Spinal Management, and by some of our older Facilitators in these 
awards becoming less active. This year, John Summers and Mike 
Shaw gained the Pain Management Facilitator and Advanced 
Resuscitation Facilitator awards respectively. A focus of interest in 
the coming year will be to build our capability to deliver the Spinal 
Management and Silver Medallion Beach Management awards as 
well. 

Our younger members also showed their passion to get onto patrol. 
John Skipsey, Cath Morgan and Jay Morgan all put in a huge effort 
that saw 69 new SRC’s join our patrols this season. Don’t 
underestimate the amount of effort required to keep 69 teenagers 
focussed -  well done, team ! 

Mike Shaw, John Summers, John Price and Peter Hastie once again 
were the backbone of our Commercial Training team. We provided 
Community Surf Rescue Certificate training and proficiencies to 
three local schools – Seton College, Scotch College and CBC 
Fremantle – plus a Surf School. A total of 75 candidates received 
their training and qualifications. In addition, Mike trained 18 
candidates to Provide CPR and Provide First Aid qualifications. As a 
result, commercial training generated over $5,000 in fees for the 
Club. 

The IRB trainers continued to work tirelessly throughout Winter and 
Summer to award six members  with their Silver Medallion IRB 
Driver qualification and 31 with the IRB Crew Certificate.  

The enormous amount of training that we have undertaken this year 
has put substantial stress on Education team, and we have 
fortunately had a number of members express interest in becoming 
trainers and assessors next season. We look forward to providing 
more opportunities for our members to upskill in the 2019-20 
season and ultimately to build a more resilient training and 
assessing community.  

 
2018-19 2017-18 

 Certificate IV in Training and Assessment 2 2 

 Certificate II in Public Safety (Aquatic Rescue) 54 1 

 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques [AID] 16 40 

 Bronze Medallion 55 65 

 First Aid [AID] 7 16 

 IRB Crew Certificate 1 31 

 Pain Management Certificate  2 11 

 Radio Operator Certificate 4 -  

 Rescue Water Craft Operator Certificate 4 2 

 Silver Medallion IRB Driver 7 6 

 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed) 61 69 

 WA Assessor 1 -  

 WA Facilitator (First Aid, ART AID) 3 1 

 WA Silver Medallion Beach Management  6 2 

 WA Training Officer (Bronze Medallion) 2 2 

 WA Training Officer (IRB) 1 -  

 WA Training Officer Certificate 5 -  

Candidates from the January intensive Bronze course being carefully assessed 
by Graham Sharpe (Swanbourne) and Nick Hancock (Cottesloe) 
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Marketing Report 
Mick Burke 

T 

he focus of the Marketing Committee this season was to 
nurture the established sponsor relationships and to ensure 

alignment of activities with the Club Strategic Plan.  In the financial 
area, the major goals included management of sponsors and 
achievement of income expectations.  In Club Development, we 
aimed to involve sufficient members to ensure year-on-year 
succession, create meaningful roles for Youth members, and 
support the committee with the refinement of processes.   

The state of the WA economy has constrained some businesses in 
the amount they can contribute for sponsorship of worthy 
community causes like our Club.  We enjoyed high retention of 
existing sponsors and are thankful to  

Channel Nine   Aussie Natural Spring Water 
Minuteman Printing  Fremantle Steel Fabrication 

Mirvac         (with Mark D’Amato) 
Programmed   Core Fitness 

Brookfield’s Property Partners Juniper 
Mincon Rockdrills   City of Fremantle 

The significant contribution from our major sponsors supports the 
Club to provide the essential equipment needed for the provision of 
lifesaving services and training of patrolling members. 

Fremantle Life Member Larry Tilbury contributed a substantial cash 
donation towards a new surf boat.   

WA Museum advertised their Ningaloo reef display on one side of 
our patrol shelter.  This was a valuable sponsorship for our club and 
also proved to be effective advertising for WA Museum. 

Some club members have accepted the offer from ‘Message in 
Motion’ to display advertising on the back window of their vehicle.  
The Club and the individual club member both receive funding from 
this arrangement.  The offer to club members will arise again during 
the oncoming season.   

SLSA national sponsor AGL once again supported us this year with 
the provision of ten nipper surf boards taking their total donation up 
to 18 nippers boards over the last two seasons.  We also thank 
Westpac, Lisa O’Malley MP, Grace Hendrix from Vacswim, and Bib & 
Tucker for their sponsorship during the season.  

SLSWA raises funds at a state level which it redistributes to surf 
clubs across WA. The total benefit to our Club this year was over 
$35,000 including a new All Terrain Vehicle.   

A terrific number of members joined in to shake a can for the Annual 
Street Appeal, which raised just over $2,500.   Cait Jameson was a 
central organiser for the complex task of securing collection 
locations and allocating timeslots amongst members.  It’s not a 
comfortable role for a life saver to be collecting money in public, so 
thank you to all involved.   

The club hosts an annual open water swim event, the Fremantle 
Ocean Classic.  It was again successful as a fundraiser and as a fun 
event for the 156 participants.  We raised over $2,800 on the day.  

This event builds on the knowledge from each previous year. A 
large number of members contribute with water safety, 
marshalling, catering, registration, administration, and liaison for 
donations from club sponsors.   

Our sponsors who either donated money or vouchers to make the 
event successful were Finz Swimwear, Nine News, Mint Real Estate, 
Coast Port Beach, Orange Box, Aussie Natural Water, Pluck Brumby’s 
East Fremantle, Puck, Strange Company. 

The Port Beach Polar Bears are affiliated members of Fremantle 
SLSC and continue to be major supporters with a donation of over 
$7,000 this year.  This amazing group of open water swimmers add 
a vibrancy to our Port Beach annexe, which is used as their 
clubrooms.  We share a common love and respect for the beach 
environment.   

Many businesses support the production of 
the Annual Report including Powerhouse, 
Whiteline,  Coast Port Beach,  Mark Tilbury 
Home Improvements, Allsports, WA Laser 
Eye, Fremantle Leisure Centre, Blue Gecko, 
Fremantle Ports, Josh Wilson and Simone 
McGurk.  

Please support these businesses so they 
can continue to support our club.   

An initiative of the marketing committee is 
the establishment of an annual donations 
honour board.  Members and supporters 

who donate $100 will have their name recognised on a display 
board to be erected in the main club entry.  Details of how to 
participate will go out shortly.  Club Vice Patron Alex Bajada is 
underwriting the cost of establishing the honour board system.   

Some initial work has been undertaken on developing a strategy to 
attract corporate sponsorship for Youth activities at the club.  A 
focus for the coming season will be liaison with club Youth 
leadership on their needs and aspirations and how sponsorship can 
assist.  There is, for example, significant cost to run a Youth camp 
with all the associated activities.  

Thank you to committee members Tony Silipo, Alex Bajada, Matt 
Elliott, Jo Jameson, Seisha Fogarty-Pryor, Hannah Murray, and 
newcomers Gavin Blake and Zoe Campbell.  Tony puts an 
enormous amount of time into marketing on top of his club Director 
role and his omnipresent volunteering around the club.  Matt, of 
course, remains at the core of sponsor relationships.  

Huge thanks to Jo Jameson, Dee Purcell and Erin Jameson -  our 
club administration team.  They took on the responsibility of project 
management for major fundraising events and undertook much of 
the sponsor liaison.  They are a superbly competent team managing 
the complexity of people, procedures and finances.   

Overall, it was a successful season for the management of sponsors 
and sponsorship income.  There is no shortage of members 
volunteering to support each event.  We are seeking to increase the 
numbers on the Marketing Committee with members who can 
provide administrative support, help identify potential sponsors, and 
also members with marketing skills.   An area of expansion for the 
club in the coming season will be the creation of printed and 
electronic promotion materials so we need the ideas people and 
the production people.  The inclusion of Youth members in the 
committee’s work will also take a high priority.    

Advertising opportunities for sponsors 
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Lifesaving World Championship 2019 (Adelaide) 

T 

he ILS Life Saving World Championships (LWC) are held every 
two years, this time at Glenelg in Adelaide during November 

2018. Held over sixteen days, this world event comprises both Pool 
Rescue and Surf Rescue competitions and attract over 7,000 
competitors from 45 countries. This puts it on the similar scale to the 
Aussies and this year’s event saw several firsts – first time the event 
has returned to a city for a second time; first time run by a state 
association (not the national body); and the first running of National 
Teams and IRB Racing events. 

While Australia took out the honours in the Open National Teams 
event, beating traditional rivals New Zealand, the Kiwis came back 
and had our measure in the National Youth Teams and IRB events. 
Thirty-five World records were broken in the pool. 

Our Club sent over just three surf competitors – Tracey Shaw, Fi 
Carroll and good friend Alicia Anderson (who transferred down from 
North Cottesloe just for this event, so that our girls would be able to 
enter in teams events in the surf competition). 

By the time Tracey and Fi arrived in Adelaide, Alicia had already 
claimed Bronze in the pool – in the 30-34 Female 200m Obstacle 
Race. An early ‘speed bump’ appeared when we found out that the 
so-called racing boards “reserved” for competition (consequently, 
we didn’t transport our own boards across to Adelaide) had been 
rented out to overseas competitors. A bit of vigorous negotiation saw 
us able to rent one board and strike a deal with Club life member 
Michael Cook (competing for Trigg Island) to access a second board 
for the relays. 

Then, after a wonderful first day training session in 30-degree  
temperatures on Glenelg Beach, the mother-of-all cold fronts blew 
through Adelaide that evening. Wind gusts up to 90 knots left tents 
on the beach smashed like dying spiders. Even a gear trailer in the 
compound wasn’t spared, flipping and smashing a couple of skis. 
Storm surge saw the beach arena eroded and the sprint tracked 
flooded and washed out. So bad was the damage to one grandstand, 
it had to be pulled down. Temperatures reaching no higher than 15 
degrees for the next few days saw t-shirts change to ski jackets. 

The Glenelg inshore water depth made for some interesting swim 
racing – in the mornings at high tide, the start line was just metres in 
front of the grandstand. By lunchtime, when the tide had moved out, 
it was a 90 metre run, 20 metre dolphin dive and five strokes to the 
swim cans ! However, everyone soldiered on in the bleak conditions, 
with our girls picking up a further three Bronze medals. 

Fi Carroll picked up a Bronze in the 40-44 Female Surf Race, after a 
contentious turn at the first can by an eastern states competitor was 
followed by an even more contentious overturning of her 
disqualification. Then Tracey Shaw and Fi teamed up to score a 
Bronze in the 40-44 Board Rescue, and all three girls came together 
to take Bronze in the 100-129 years Surf Teams Race. 

A few days later, our IRB team of seven (comprising Kitty Eichner, 
Grace Keogh, Jess Leng, Bianca Jervis, Jack Palmer, Jake Silipo and 
team manager John Summers) travelled to Glenelg to compete in 
the IRB Racing. 

In the heats, the girls picked up third in the tube rescue and 
progressed to the quarterfinals, and fifth in the single rescue and 
mass rescue. The boys came first in their single rescue heat (a great 
result), fourth in the mass rescue and progressed through to quarters 
in both. Their final result was a sixth in the tube rescue. 
Unfortunately, due to the strong competition (including competing 
against the team that competed as our national team), all our teams 
were knocked out in the quarters. Kitty reported that they had a blast 
and it was well worth all the training time. 

We’re very proud of all our Worlds competitors ! 

Devastation on the sprint track (above) and storage yard (below) 

LWC Bronze Medallists - from left, Tracey Shaw, Alicia Anderson and Fi Carroll 

Fremantle IRB Racing team at Worlds 
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Junior Development Report 
Ian Mclachlan 

E 

ach season, our nippers participate in the Surf Education 
Program set by Surf Life Saving Australia. The program is aimed 

at producing our surf life savers of the future. The program aims to 
provide the best experience to all nipper participants, provide 
instruction and opportunities through activities, promote a team 
environment, sportsmanship and encourage physical and social 
development. The program was successfully delivered by our Age 
Group Managers to 566 nippers this year, with more than 90% of our 
nippers successfully completing the program and receiving their 
Surf Education certificates on our final day in March.  

NIPPER CAMP  

Sixty-two excited nippers headed to Point Peron in February for a 
camp coordinated by Paul Whitby. Two nights and three days of 
nippers was enough for our newly minted camp leaders. Our camp 
leaders were satisfied that no emergency trips where required and 
more than happy to hand the kids back in one piece at end of the 
camp. Nipper camp was a great opportunity for the kids to bond 
with talent shows, leadership games and “spotto” forming a basis of 
friendly competition and an avenue for those “quiet” members of 
the nipper cohort a moment to shine. 

FAREWELL TO UNDER 13’s 

We also farewelled our U13’s at the end of the season as they start 
the transition into the ever-growing Youth corps, where they will 
participate in a structured program released by SLSWA at the 
beginning of this season. At the commencement of next season, 
they will begin training for their SRC. A big thank you to our U13 Age 
Group Managers -  Tracey Irving, Paul Whitby, Tim Gibbons and 
Penny Fegan -  for their years of outstanding leadership and 
commitment to our club.  

WATER SAFETY 

Our nipper program relies on our vital water safety personnel. For 
every five nippers in the water, we require one club member with a 
minimum of a Surf Rescue Certificate. Our water safety coordinator, 
Jay Morgan, ensured that we met this requirement and kept our 
nippers safe. A big thank you to Jay for his dedication and 
commitment and outstanding work this season.  

 

 

TWILIGHT NIPPERS 

Our Twilight program was again a big hit, with the format for twilight 
nippers and Club beach Championships a hit with families. After the 
Club Championships were done, a few well-earned beverages and 
some food completed another beautiful night down at Leighton 
Beach. There were some tight finishes, with judges consulting 
iPhones and iPads to ensure the correct result was recorded in a 
highly competitive atmosphere, with sportsmanship high on the 
agenda.  

STATE CHAMPIONS 

For our U10 to U13 nippers, we had two metropolitan carnivals, one 
integrated country carnival, and the State Championships held in 
March with over 1000 competitors involved. Fremantle’s strong 
showing of fourth place was a testament to the great effort by the 
nippers during challenging conditions and the efforts of the AGMs 
over the past season. As a club, we have continued to grow and 
become a great family club with a strong competitive team. A big 
thanks to the efforts of all the nippers, Age Group Managers, Officials 
and parents who contributed and made it to each of the carnivals to 
compete, manage and officiate for our club. A particular thanks to 
Neil Dickson who was an official at all our carnivals and coordinated 
surf sports carnivals for the nippers. Strong participation from our 
U8 and U9’s in the Little Nipper competition has enabled our 
nippers and parents to get a taste of what is to come when they 
take on the junior carnivals in the coming years.  

So many State medallists from our U10’s to U13’s ! 

The Twilight format for beach Club Champs was a real hit ! 
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SLSWA JUNIOR ACHIEVER AWARD 

Congratulations to Gabrielle Gibbons, recipient of the SLSWA Junior 
Achiever Award for 2019. The Junior Achiever award is a state-

based award, where Fremantle can nominate one junior member 
from the U13’s to receive this recognition. Gabrielle was selected on 
her outstanding attitude and sportsmanship amongst other qualities 
and her dedication to the sport of surf lifesaving.  

LIFESAVER OF THE YEAR RECIPIENTS 

Congratulations to the following nippers who received this 
prestigious award for the 2018-19 season –  

U7 – Eva Lane / Geordie Davey 

U8 – Torah Howe / Kobe-Jackson  Peppin 

U9 – Anais Proessler  / Lucas Dillon 

U10 – Hannah Morkel / Wesley Turnseck-James 

U11 – Cassia Audeyev / Noah O'Hehir 

U12 – Allegra Piaccia / Alexander Merry 

U13 – Jess Stackhouse / Jonah Whitby 

The success of the 2018-19 season was made possible by our 
generous volunteers who give their time and have made enormous 
efforts to ensure that our nippers have the best possible chance at 
succeeding on the beach at carnivals, or both. On behalf of the club, 
our nippers and parent support group, thank you to all of Our Age 
Group managers who spent countless hours planning and running 

our Sunday nipper sessions, to our water safety coordinator Jay and 
all of our water safety volunteers for keeping the kids safe. Each 
week our patrols and IRB teams provide relatively unacknowledged 
support, help and assistance to the nipper group. We have a great 
group of coaches and area captains who have offered their time, 
experience and support; Tony Bowers for the hours he puts into 
capturing magical moments on camera on the beach; Neil Dickson, 
our Junior Competition Coordinator. Again, this year our office 
administration team did an extraordinary job of providing 
administration support and additionally volunteering their own time 
to extra club activities to make sure that the season runs smoothly.  

Finally thank you to all our nippers and parents. We are so lucky to 
have such an active and supportive parent group and we are 
looking forward to seeing you all back again next season.  

A big turnout of happy smiling faces at Nipper Camp 

Eleven of our U13 received their Long Service awards 

Junior Achiever, Gabby Gibbons 
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Youth Development Report 
John Skipsey 

A 

s we start to put our feet up at the end of another season and 
finalise all of the awards, surf sports presentations and the like, 

it is a good time to reflect on the events on what was another great 
season for Youth. We started of the season with an intense Bronze 
Course in the Term 3 school holidays, which a number of our Youth 
joined in to kick start their season of the beach off and running in a 
rush. 

We welcomed the ever-enthusiastic and energetic John Marsh back 
as our Youth Manager for the season, along with Tony Watson, 
Kevin Netto and Andy Macintyre who returned for another season 
on the beach to help guide the Youth crew through their Sunday 
activities. A big task for such a small band of merry men, and it 
couldn’t have been achieved without the support from many others 
such as Tracey Shaw, Tony Silipo and Ben Pink who joined in 
whenever they could to help out.  The arrival of David Moody, Ken 
Cheney, Ben Clarke, and Maddy Stockden was very much 
appreciated when the U14’s formally joined Youth once the Youth 
SRC course was completed.   

This season, we had the largest group of Youth ever registered, as 
we reached 250 members from U14s though to U19s. Whilst not all 
of this group were on the beach in the Sunday Youth program, many 
were heavily involved in other areas of the club such as Surf Boats, 
Surf Sports, IRB Racing, Pool Rescue, Board Training, Beach Training, 
being AGMs for younger Age Groups and Lifesaving and Patrols.  

This season, we had about 32 U14’s from last season’s U13 Nippers 
come back to the club and we welcomed 28 new members, most of 
which were giving surf club a go for the first time. With the group, 
we welcomed Ben Clarke, David Moody, Ken Cheney and Madeleine 
Stockden to the team of Youth Coordinators.  The season for this 
group started with their SRC as always, which laid the foundations 
for the Youth SRC course comprising of 70 students which was 
completed prior to Christmas. 

As we do each season, we continued to focus on ensuring that there 
were activities for our youth to come down and join in on at the 
beach every Sunday. The activities ranged from fitness, lifesaving 
skills, surf sports to general fun activities such as volleyball and the 
like. The ever increasing challenge faced was to keep it interesting, 
and a highlight of the season was certainly when the IRB race crew 
came down and got our Youth involved with starting the training. 
Learning to use the Skis was also an activity which everybody 
involved seemed to enjoy. 

We had a number of members step up to become our Youth 
Captains for the season -  they were Clara Moody, TJ Chong Sue, 
Meesha Rothnie and Nick Dart for the U17’s, Phoebe Ashworth and 
Kelton Rothnie for U15’s and Jack Hadley and Maeve McKenna for 
U14’s. These youth leaders gave us great feedback throughout the 
season and were coming up with ideas in ways we could improve 
the Youth program.   

We held a Youth Sleepover, which tied in with the beach Club 
Championships and a DJ being at the club. The 40 kids who came 
down to stay the evening had an awesome time just hanging out 
together, and it was great to see them all doing the ‘Macarana’. A big 
thanks to Caitlyn Rothnie, Tracey Duffy, John Skipsey and David 
Moody (who came straight from the plane interstate to help out) for 
volunteering to stay the night.  A highlight was the absolutely 

beautiful morning at the beach which we woke up to, with many 
going for a paddle, with some getting a surprise visit from a few 
dolphins as they cruised past.  We also had a Youth Big Breakfast 
where the Youth got to enjoy a catch up and a breakfast as part of 
their Youth activities.  Next season we plan to build on these 
activities to give our Youth plenty of chances to catch up and have a 
lot of fun. 

As many would be aware, each season we also have the challenge 
of selecting a few members who have been outstanding in their 
efforts throughout the season for the annual Youth Achiever, and 
Youth Encouragement awards. As always, with the huge amount of 
effort, commitment and fantastic attitude that many of our youth 
display on a daily basis, it was a challenge. Eventually after late 
nights and much discussion, the following were selected: 

U15 SLSWA Club Achiever Award – Phoebe Ashworth 

U14 Youth Encouragement Award – Jack Della Marta 

U15 Youth Encouragement Award – Jason Dean 

U17 Youth Encouragement Award – Sienna Ashe and Ethan Shaw 

U19 Jason Shortte Memorial Trophy – Amber Kinnane 

Once again, we had some Youth attend the SLSWA Annual RISE UP 
and TOAD camps. With such a group of awesome kids, we had great 

Phoebe Ashworth presented with the SLSWA U15 Youth Achiever award by 
SLSWA President Craig Smith-Gander 

From left, Jack Della-Marta, Jason Dean, Sienna Ashe, Ethan Shaw, Amber Kinnane 
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difficulty selecting candidates this season, and whilst we nominated 
more, SLSWA limited the places, so we had Jack Hadley, Johann 
Szymanski, Maeve McKenna and Lily Stackhouse from our U14’s go 
to TOAD, while Zac Evans, James Currey and Lily Skipsey went to 
RISE UP. As for last year, the camps were held at Rottnest for TOAD 
and Pemberton for RISE Up and from all reports, a fantastic time 
was had by all. 

It was also another big season in the Surf Sports arena with a large 
number of our very committed youth attending the increasing 
number of training opportunities provided at the club to develop 
their skills and then compete in the broad range of surf sports 
competition that was on offer. We had a large number of 
competitors participate in Pool Rescue, Surf League, Senior 
Carnivals, Ocean Swims, State Champions Ships, Aussies, IRB, Surf 
Boats, State Teams and the various other events nationwide.  The 
list of those who participated and received recognition and medals 
is included in the back of this report. A big thanks to all of the Surf 
Sports team who have volunteered a lot of their own time to 
provide multiple training and coaching session to assist our Youth 
with improving their skills. 

Planning for next season is already underway, with a focus on 
improving our understanding of what our Youth want, and making 
sure that we continue to provide relevant, interesting and fun 
activities every Sunday on the beach that help us retain and 
develop our Youth into Senior members at the club and support 
them as they themselves develop into young adults. 

Finally, a huge thankyou on behalf of the club to all those who have 
volunteered and helped out throughout the season to make the 
Youth program happen. From Marshy and the team of Youth 
coordinators, the coaches and surf sports trainers, the trainers and 
assessors, the admin team, and all of the parents, Seniors and 
Youth who volunteered to support the various events throughout 
the year, whether it be for setup, water safety or the like. Most 
importantly, thanks to all the Youth who come down each week 
and participate in the various activities at the club. Even if you can’t 
make it down to Sunday Youth, we hope that you are getting down 
to the club and enjoying participating in the lifesaving, training, surf 
sports, AGM’ing and various other activities going. It is always great 
to see your faces on the beach and we hope to see you all there 
next season as we work to make next season better again for you 
all. 

Youth Development Report (cont) 

The RISE UP squad 
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Social Report 
Zoe Jaques & Jette Oksis 

 ‘ There are no strangers here, only friends you haven’t met yet.’ 

F 

remantle Surf Life Saving Club is growing, with people that love 
the beach, who are pushing to achieve personal goals, parents 

who want their kids to be involved in Nippers and people 
volunteering for patrols. Whatever the reason, we have so many 
things in common and one of those is getting together and having 
fun. Social events are great opportunities to relax with old friends 
and make new ones as well as welcome all the new members we 
have at the club. Sing a long as we look back at all the good times 
we had. 

 In an octopus’ garden ... 

The season started with a SPLASH in October, as members old and 
new joined for a great night ‘Under the Sea.’ Around 200 people 
attended and danced and sang with a karaoke machine belting out 
some fine tunes. The most spectacular of costumes led to an array 
of creatures with the sea meeting the dry land which brought the 
club to life. Stand out costumes go to the Morgan and Gleeson 
families whose time and effort was truly outstanding! 

This is the monster mash ... 

The IRB team hosted a ghoulish night of pumpkins and werewolves 
and everything in between late in October. Costumes were spookily 
creative and the atmosphere chillingly groovy. 120 ghosts and 
goblins and other fantastic beasts rocked up for the lollies and food 
with a special mention to those that created some eerie pumpkin 
carvings! Well done to Kitty and the IRB Team for such a 
spectacular night.  

I’m dreaming of a white (beachie) Christmas ... 

The annual club Christmas party sure was a Christmas shared with 
the broad surf club family. The scrumptious Christmas buffet went 
down a treat with no one leaving with empty bellies. The kids had a 
great time on the bouncy castle, parents relaxed and everyone was 
jolly, which was the perfect festive wind-down of the 2018 club 

year. A special mention to Santa who took time out from the North 
Pole to pay a visit to the friendly folk of Freo!  

Don’t stop believing ... 

Australian Adventurer of the Year, Steve Plain captured hearts and 
minds as he spoke to all eager State competitors ready to make 
their mark at the Players Tea. Inspirational in his comeback from a 
debilitating injury, Steve went on to conquer the highest peaks in 
seven continents in his Project 7 in 4. Steve achieved his goal 
despite his recent broken neck, formidable weather and never 
having previous mountain climbing experience. Steve smashed the 
world record and used his project to highlight Surf Life Savers and 
the valuable role they play in saving lives and reducing risks at our 
beaches.  Many touching  lessons for all who attended including 
that we all can achieve our dreams if we just keep going ‘step by 
step’. 

You’re never too old to be young… 

The Masters may rock the greyer hair and the laughter lines, but 
showed their youth and vitality after a successful day in Sorrento in 
May for the Masters State Championships. The good old tunes and 
amazing food kept Masters and their awesome supporters in 
celebratory spirits. New and familiar (not old) faces, more medals 
and lots of great comradeship made for a great day and fun night at 
the club. 

With a little help from my friends… 

The Volunteers Sundowner was another event to celebrate the 
Admin team, Officials, Water Safety, Managers and AGMS, 
photographer Tony Bowers, Canteen, Uniform managers  and many 
more for their commitment, time and effort given to help make our 
club the fantastic place it is. As a volunteer club that keeps getting 
bigger, all those who help and continue to make our Club a great 
place to be are valued. The Volunteers shared a casual evening 
grazing and sipping thanks to the Board. 

This opportunity comes once in a lifetime… 

It's a wrap. The final social event of the season was the Annual 
Dinner, a night of glamour.  The awards read out celebrated the 
achievements of many club members who have excelled in 
competition and also others who have contributed many hours to 
the club. The dance floor at the Swan Yacht Club was the centre of 
the action for most. Lots of laughs, great food and the memory we 
all have to live with, the Boaties line dance.  

A massive thank you must go out to all members that supported 
the social aspects of the club this past season. From spreading the 
enthusiasm of events, to all that attended and to all that 
volunteered their time to make the events such a success. Again, 
thank you. 

‘Under The Sea’ evening kicked off the social year in a big way 

Ghosts and goblins and ghouls, oh my ! 

Putting on the Ritz for the Annual Dinner 



Club Championship Trophies and Member Awards 

Best Club Member 
Best Patrol Member 

Boat Person of the Year 
Most Improved Rower 
IRB Person of the Year 

Ron Bennett Medal 

David Carbon 

Kelly Aitken-Fox 

Bob Myers 

Tessa Miotti 
Jack Palmer 
Fi Carroll 

Best Club Member Awards 

Club Champions 

Open Male 

U19 Male 

U17 Male 

U15 Male 

U14 Male 

Over 30 Male 

Over 40 Male 

Over 50 Male 

 

Open Female 

U19 Female 

U17 Female 

U15 Female 

U14 Female 

Over 30 Female 

Over 40 Female 

Over 50 Female 

Surf Race 

TJ Chong Sue 

 

TJ Chong Sue 

Kelton Rothnie 

Jack Della-Marta 

 

Zan Gamble 

Tony Watson 

 

Ellie Fry 

Amber Kinnane 

Georgia Rothnie 

Phoebe Ashworth 

Sienna Menin 

 

Fiona Carroll 

Malibu Board 

Finn Hussey 

 

Finn Hussey 

Luke Collins 

Johann Szymanski 

 

Zan Gamble 

Gil Wainwright 
 

Amber Kinnane 

Amber Kinnane 

Stella Watson 

Phoebe Ashworth 

Lily Stackhouse 

 

Fiona Carroll 

Surf Ski 
Mark Housham 

 

Nicholas Dart 
 

 

 

Zan Gamble 

Jon Standing 

 

Annabelle Standing 

Ella Douglas 

Kate Collins 

 

 

 

 

Beach Sprint 
Jarrod Ng 

 

Zac Evans 

Kelly Rawlings 

Jack Hadley 

 

David Carbon 

Kevin Housham 

 

Maeve McKenna 

 

Sienna Ashe 

Holly Baker 
Lily Stackhouse 

Anne-Marie Nunes 

Cherie McLachlan 

Maryann Kelleher 

Beach Flags 

Jarrad Ng 

 

Josh Crevola 

Kelly Rawlings 

Ben Heatley 

 

David Carbon 

Kevin Housham 

 

Amy Browning 

 

Amy Browning 

Ruby Fegan 

Lily Stackhouse 

 

Cherie McLachlan 

Sandra Miller 

Ironman/woman 

Finn Hussey 

 

Finn Hussey 

Patrick Dart 
Johann Szymanski 

 

Zan Gamble 

 

 

Kate Collins 

 

Stella Watson 

Phoebe Ashworth 

 

 

 

 

Tube Race 

TJ Chong Sue 

Kelton Rothnie 

TJ Chong Sue 

Patrick Dart 
 

 

 

Tony Watson 

 

Stella Watson 

Tessa Chapman 

Georgia Rothnie 

Phoebe Ashworth 

 

 

 

 

2km Run 

Alec Davison 

Nick Watson 

Alec Davison 

Roan O’Hehir 
 

 

John Marsh 

Kevin Housham 

 

Amelie Prinsloo 

 

Carly Pizzuto 

Amelie Prinsloo 

 

Cherie McLachlan 

 

 

HMAS Sydney II Tube Race 

1600m Swim 

Handicap Surf Boat race 

TJ Chong Sue & Stella Watson 

Finn Hussey & Olivia Power 
Colin Duffield, Kate Grayson, Spencer Cranston, 
Alec Vukovich, Jake Silipo 

Perpetual Surf Sports Trophy Winners 

U/14 M 200m Obstacles 

U/15 M 200m Obstacles 

U/15 M 200m Obstacles 

Open M 12.5m Line Throw 

U/14 M 50m Freestyle with Fins 

U/14 F 50m Freestyle with Fins 

U/15 M 50m Freestyle with Fins 

U/17 M 50m Freestyle with Fins 

U/14 M 100m Manikin Tow w/Fins 

U/15 M 100m Manikin Tow w/Fins 

U/17 M 100m Manikin Tow w/Fins 

U/14 M 50m Manikin Carry 35m 

U/15 M 50m Manikin Carry 

U/17 M 50m Manikin Carry 

U/15 M 100m Manikin Carry w/Fins 

U/17 M 200m Super Lifesaver 
40+ F 200m Obstacles 

4x50m M Masters Obstacle Relay 

 

4x50m F Masters Obstacle Relay 

 

40+ F 100m Manikin Tow/Fins 

Kelton Rothnie 

Tupou Chong Sue 

Alison Webb 

Craig Ashworth, Harrison Hynes 

Kelton Rothnie 

Phoebe Ashworth 

Tupou Chong Sue 

Harrison Hynes 

Kelton Rothnie 

Tupou Chong Sue 

Harrison Hynes 

Kelton Rothnie 

Tupou Chong Sue 

Harrison Hynes 

Tupou Chong Sue 

Harrison Hynes 

Fiona Carroll 
Craig Ashworth, Matthew Coleman, 
 Ian McLachlan, Mark Lewis 

Jodie Pink, Rachelle Doyle, Fiona Carroll, 
Tracey Shaw 

Fiona Carroll 

Senior State Champions 

30-39 M 50m Freestyle/Fins 

30-39 F 50m Freestyle/Fins 

40+ F 50m Freestyle/Fins 

4x25m M Masters Manikin Relay 

 

4x50m Masters M Medley Relay 

 

4x50m Masters F Medley Relay 

 

130 Min F Board Relay 

130 Min F Surf Teams Race 

130 Min M Surf Teams Race 

 

170 Min F Beach Relay 

 

200 Min M Beach Relay 

 

40-44 F Surf Race 

40-44 M Beach Flags 

45-49 M Beach Flags 

45-49 M Beach Sprint 
50-54 F Board Race 

 

James Birkmanis 

Jodie Pink 

Fiona Carroll 
James Birkmanis, Tony Watson, 
Tim Gibbons, Matt Elliott 
James Birkmanis, Tony Watson, 
Tim Gibbons, Matt Elliott 
Fiona Carroll, Rachelle Doyle, 
Tracey Shaw, Jodie Pink 

Fiona Carroll, Jette Oksis, Tracey Shaw 

Fiona Carroll, Jette Oksis, Tracey Shaw 

Benedict Clarke, Matt Elliott, 
Brad Ravenscroft 
Fiona Carroll, Maryann Kelleher, 
Cherie McLachlan, Anne-Marie Nunes 

David Carbon, Jack Dowie, Matt Elliott, 
Kevin Housham 

Fiona Carroll 
Marcin Gabriel 
Benedict Clarke 

David Carbon 

Tracey Shaw 

 

Medallists & Finalists at the Australian Surf Life Saving Championships 

130 F Surf Teams 

40-44 F Board Rescue 

45-49 M Surf Race 

130 F Board Relay 

U15 M Ocean Swim 

U15 M Surf Race 

50-54 F Surf Race 

Bronze Fi Carroll, Jette Oksis, Tracey Shaw 

Bronze Fi Carroll, Tracey Shaw 

Finalist Ben Clarke 

Finalist Fi Carroll, Jette Oksis, Tracey Shaw 

Finalist Archie Davis 

Finalist Archie Davis 

Finalist Tracey Shaw 

SLSWA Youth Achiever 
Jason Shortte Memorial (U19) 

U17 Encouragement Award 

U15 Encouragement Award 

U14 Encouragement Award 

Phoebe Ashworth 

Amber Kinnane 

Sienna Ashe & Ethan Shaw 

Jason Dean 

Jack Della-Marta 
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Director of Surf Sports Report 
Jack Dowie 

T 

he Surf Sports Team inclusive of the Manager, ten committee 
members, Coaches, Officials, our Admin team, our Social 

Committee and of course many clubbie volunteers are quite 
amazing in what they do for our athletes and the club. This year was 
no exception. 

Two of our long-term Surf Sports committee members decided to 
take a well-earned break this season -  Jon Standing (six years as 
Director Surf Sports) and Martin Jackson (seven years as Board 
Captain). Their contribution within the Club was and continues to be 
outstanding. 

Individual Surf Sports discipline reports highlight and recognise 
individuals and teams who have performed exceptionally well over 
the season. To those members who achieved National and State 
awards, we think you are amazing and hope you will continue to 
strive to maintain or even top that level in the new season. Most 
importantly, every single member who trained or competed at the 
club, or for the club, this season should give themselves a pat on 
the back and start thinking about their goals for the 2020 season.  

The winner of this year’s Ron Bennett Medal, for the best 
performance by an individual or team at a State Open 
Championships, went to our Masters Captain, Fi Carroll. Fi had an 
outstanding year in Masters competition, starting off with five gold 
and three silver medals at the State Pool Rescue Championship and 
contributing significantly to our Club’s overall success at that event. 
She followed that up with two gold medals at the State Endurance 
Championships held at Sorrento. And then most recently, Fi picked 
up another four gold medals at the Masters State Surf 
Championships, also back at Sorrento. 

Other worthy contenders for the award included Harrison Hynes 
picking up five gold and two silver medals, TJ Chong Sue five gold 
and one silver, and Kelton Rothnie four gold and one silver at Senior 
Pool Rescue States; Tracey Shaw picking up four gold, one silver 
and one bronze medal at Masters States; and Kalani Chong Sue six 
gold and one silver and Thomas Dreverman five gold and two silver 
at Junior State Pool Rescue. 

In my view, this season was full of team spirit and most, if not 
everyone, who trained and competed at any level enjoyed 
themselves, an important ’tick’ our Club values. 

From a management perspective, the club performed close to the 
expectations of our Strategic Plan. Surf Sports development is a 
constant challenge every year. However, we are seeing an upward 
trend in competition now and this year was boosted by a few 
additional Coaches and Officials. 

Intra-club competition participation was huge this season, but 
participation at inter-club competition, including States, was down 
in numbers, particularly within Youth and Seniors. It should be noted 
of course that despite low numbers competing, the standard 
remained high so that our club ranking overall remained constant 
from the previous season. 

Equipment was available to competing members throughout the 
season, as usual. Unfortunately boards and skis took a beating and 
repair costs have been higher than predicted. The Committee is 
currently looking at options to keep equipment secure and prevent 
damage for the coming season. Members were reminded at training 
of these costs to the Club -  in round numbers, a board costs $2000 
and a ski $3000 to replace. 

Water safety, like Officials, is one of those things that if you don’t 
provide them, your club can’t compete. We came close a couple of 

times this season and if it wasn’t for a handful of regulars in the IRB 
Team we may have not raced on the day.  

In the end, everyone who volunteered for something this season 
contributed to Fremantle being a club where everyone can have a 
go and, if they want it, have the opportunity to perform at a high 
level within Surf Sports. Going forward, the Club’s plan is for 
Fremantle to be one of the ‘top four’ competitive clubs in WA. We 
are currently sitting around fifth or sixth. 

The Surf Sports Team at Fremantle has what it takes to meet our 
plan, but it will take some time and a little patience. The importance 
of keeping the Nippers engaged in competition when transitioning 
into Youth and Seniors is a big focus. To achieve this, coaching skills 
will need to be enhanced by the introduction of performance 
coaches within some disciplines, equipment needs to be maintained 
and available to members and of course the athletes need to show 
dedication and obviously put the time and effort in to be rewarded.  

And in recent news, we have learned that two of our competitors, TJ 
Chong Sue and Harrison Hynes, have been selected in the 
Australian Youth Lifesaving Team to compete at the Lifesaving 
World Championships in Italy in 2020-  congratulations TJ and 
Harrison ! 

Harrison Hynes (left) and TJ Chong Sue 

Fi Carroll (left) presented with the Ron Bennett trophy 
by last year’s winner, Tracey Shaw 
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Beach Captain Report 
Erin Jameson 

S 

eason 2018-19 was the beginning of a new squad and has been a 
great success. With training kicking off in September, a coaching 

session with Jackson Symonds inspired the Seniors to kick start the 
season.  This was followed by an introduction of a grass and beach 
training session held by Jarrod Ng, who has been a role model for 
many of our young senior members and new squad members. 

In all carnivals, we had a great turn out and picked up podium places 
at the senior carnivals -  in particular, Carly Pizzuto placed an overall 
second place in the SLSWA senior 2km series (winning $75) and Alex 
Winner placed first in the beach sprint and beach flags (winning a 
$200 Engine voucher).  

The State Championships beach events were very successful for 
Fremantle, having the most competitors over all ages groups and 
events. 

In the Juniors,  Alexander Merry picked up a gold in the U12 1km run, 
and bronze medals were won by Jordan Krieser in the U12 flags, 
Kalani Chong Sue in the U12 beach sprint and Eben Prinsloo in the 
U13 1km run. 

In the Seniors, we picked up only one medal, a bronze for Lily 
Stackhouse in the U14 flags, but then a string of placings -  fourth 
placing for Lily Stackhouse again in the U14 beach sprint, Johann 
Szymanski in the U14 2km run, Alex Winner in the U19 beach sprint 
and the Youth beach relay team (Lily Stackhouse, Harriet Reeves, 
Ruby Fegan and Arabella Marsh). And a couple of fifths for Ruby 
Fegan in the U15 flags, Harriet Reeves in the U15 beach sprint and the 
U17 female beach relay team (Clara Moody, Sienna Ashe, Amy 
Browning and Meg Rawlings). 

Our Masters continued their exception performance on the beach 
over the last couple of years. Gold medal results for - the 170+ female 
beach relay (Fi Carroll, Maryann Kelleher, Cherie McLachlan, Anne-

Marie Nunes), 200+ male beach relay (David Carbon, Jack Dowie, Matt 

Elliott, Kevin Housham), Marcin Gabriel in the 40-44 flags, Ben Clarke 
in the 45-49 flags and David Carbon in 45-49 beach sprint). Then, 
silvers for Cherie McLachlan in the 40-44 flags, 2km run and beach 
sprint, Maryann Kelleher in the 50-54 beach sprint, Jack Dowie in the 
55-59 2km run and Kevin Housham in the 55-59 beach sprint. And, 
bronze medals for 170+ beach relay (Ben Clarke, Marcin Gabriel, John 
Marsh, Jay Morgan), 200+ beach relay (Pip Hawson, Cath Morgan, 
Tracey Shaw, Jacqui Sydes), Anne-Marie Nunes for the 30-34 beach 
sprint, Caroline Watson for the 35-39 beach sprint and flags, Jette 
Oksis for the 40-44 2km run and Marcin Gabriel for the 40-44 beach 
sprint. 

Special congratulations go to Jack Hadley and Ben Clarke for 
representing Fremantle in the Flags and Sprints events at Aussies.  

Season 2019-20 training has already begun, with a gym session and 
fitness and plyometric sessions every week in the off-season. When it 
starts to warm up and the winter sports have finished, we will be 
adding in some additional training sessions. We are very excited for 
the upcoming season and seeing so much enthusiasm from a wide 
range of members in the club.  

This season wouldn’t have been able to be happen without our 
amazing volunteers -  Jarrod Ng, Jack Dowie, Mark Housham and 
Dave Carbon for their expertise throughout the season.  

 

 

  

Our 170+ female and 200+ male beach relay teams won gold medals 

Lily Stackhouse pushing hard to take bronze for the U14 flags 

Ben Clarke picked up gold in the 45-49 flags 
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Board Captain Report 
Tony Watson 

F 

irst and foremost, I would like to thank those that have been in 
attendance, organised and taken Board training for the six 

months that was the Summer Season -  Matt Elliott, Craig ‘Ashie’ 
Ashworth  and Martin Jackson. Thank you -  your contributions are 
valued and appreciated!  Being a part of Board’s is like being part of 
a family.  Across the summer, it is the best way to start a Tuesday or 
Thursday!  The weather and conditions can be good, bad or 
otherwise.  Irrespective we hit the water, we trained for the most 
part, as hard as we could.  This year, those that attended were 
broken into three groups -  one targeting athletes focussed on 
performance, one for those beginning and interested in fitness and 
skills development, and Nippers, looked after by Ashie.  Across the 
three groups, skill levels, fitness and development continuously 
improved. 

Where competition is concerned, Nipper and Youth athletes 
continue to be better than competitive, enjoying good levels of 
success at Carnivals and States.  A challenge for the Club generally, 
will be the retention of as many Junior competitors as possible, 
enabling Fremantle to enjoy greater representation at the Youth 
and Senior levels.  Whilst individuals focussed on competing will 
continue to do so, it is hoped participation generally will provide the 
foundation for more sustained levels of team participation over the 
next three to five years.  At the Masters level, competitor numbers 
continue to grow, growing team numbers and success.  To 
conclude, I would like to thank the Board and the Surf Sports 
Committee for the equipment we use and its maintenance ! 

Amber Kinnane (above) and Finn Hussey are Open Board Club Champions 

Nick Dart and Finn Hussey picked up a Bronze Medal in U17 Board 
Rescue at States, watched by Jonny Kay and TJ Chong Sue in fourth 

Tracey Shaw (left) and Fi Carroll took Bronze in Board Rescue at Worlds 

U13 Board Rescue States gold medallists Jess Stackhouse 
and Gabby Gibbons (left) with bronze medallists Ava 
Forrest and Lexi Menin. Jess Stackhouse also picked up a 
gold medal in the U13 Board Race 
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Swim Captain Report 
Craig Ashworth 

O 

ur swimmers can be proud of their achievements this year in 
the Ocean Swimming disciplines -  we had plenty of success 

across an array of different events on both the SLSWA Calendar as 
well as the Swimming WA Open Water Swim Series. 

SLSWA ENDURANCE CHAMPIONSHIPS 

Eleven athletes competed in the Endurance Championships, and 
some stellar performances saw us bring home two Gold (Tracey 
Shaw and Fi Carroll). three Silver (Phoebe Ashworth, Mark Lewis and 
Jette Oksis) and one Bronze (Brad Ravenscroft). Special mention to 
Finn Hussey, Kate and Luke Collins, James Currey and Pat Dart for 
making the finals. 

SLSWA JUNIOR/SENIOR CARNIVALS 

Another great season with plenty of good results across the 
Individual Surf Races as well as the Surf Teams events. Our Junior 
and Youth Competitors where the standout performers across the 
board. Phoebe Ashworth backed up successive top-two places in the 
individual races to see her take out first place in the U15 female 
progressive points score at season’s end. 

SLSWA STATE CHAMPIONSHIPS 

For the first time in a while, we managed to put together some teams 
for the Open Rescue Tube Rescue, with our male team (comprising 
all U17 competitors) taking out sixth place. 

In Surf Race events, Sienna Menin, Jack Della-Marta, Liam Pizzirani 
and Johann Szymanski all made finals. In the U15 female, Phoebe 
Ashworth and Ellie Fry picked up a Bronze medal and a fifth place 
respectively in a close finish. Kelton Rothnie and Archie Davis took 
out fourth and fifth in the male event. 

In Surf Teams events, the U17 male (Nick Dart, TJ Chong Sue, Finn 
Hussey and Jonny Kay) and Youth Girls (Phoebe Ashworth, Ellie Fry, 
Maeve McKenna and Sienna Menin) picked up Silver medals each, 
whilst the Youth Boys (Pat Dart, Kelly Rawlings, Archie Davis and Jack 
Della-Marta) nabbed a Bronze. 

Next, our Masters team headed up to Sorrento and bought home a 
swag of medals in both team and individuals. A Gold went to the 130+ 
female team of Jette Oksis, Fi Carroll and Tracey Shaw, whilst Ben 
Clarke, Matt Elliott and Brad Ravenscroft followed suit in the male 
event. The 150+ female team of Pip Hawson, Emma Moir and Jacqui 
Sydes grabbed a Bronze medal as well. 

In Surf Race events, Fi Carroll won gold and Tracey Shaw a silver, 
while other points winners were Tony Watson, Emma Moir, Ben 
Clarke, Pip Hawson and Jette Oksis. 

Next up was our biggest group in the Juniors -  they are absolute 
guns and will put the club in good stead in the coming years. 

In the individual Surf Races, we had eight swimmers finish in the top 
ten, with two of them bringing home medals (Jemima Paterson 
earning Silver in the U10 female and Kalani Chong Sue Bronze in the 
U12 males). The remaining top ten finishers were Nikolay Dwyer, 
Eddie Davis, Poppy Rawlings, Thomas Dreverman, Marc Dickson and 
Eben Prinsloo. 

In the Surf Team events, we managed to collect four medals in total 
with another three teams making top-eight. The U10 females (Niamh 
Dickson, Evie Lila Hussey, Hannah Morkel and Jemima Paterson) took 
Bronze, U13 male (Nick Collins, Jake Gooding, Eben Prinsloo and 
Jonah Whitby) and female (Imogen Ashworth, Gabrielle Gibbons, Lexi 
Menin and Ava Forrest) teams finished with Silver each. The 
outstanding team effort went to the U12 males (Kalani Chong Sue, 
Thomas Dreverman, Liam McGuigan and Marc Dickson) who bought 
home a hard-fought Gold Medal. 

SLSA AUSTRALIAN CHAMPIONSHIPS 

Eight athletes and their support crew headed over to the beaches of 
the Gold Coast to take on Australia’s best in March/April -  four Youth 
and four Masters donned the blue and gold cap. 

In the Youth Area held at North Burleigh, our best performer was 
Archie Davis who finished 17th in the Surf Race Final. On the Sunday, 
the ‘water babies’ lined up to have a crack at the 2km Open Water 
swim, with Archie Davis a creditable sixth in the U15’s, Johann 
Szymanski seventh in the U14’s and Phoebe Ashworth eighth in the 
U15’s. 

Up next to the Masters arenas at Broadbeach, our girls bought home 
a couple of medals and managed to make most of their finals. In the 
130+ Surf Teams event,  Fi Carroll, Tracey Shaw and Jette Oksis 
finished with a well-deserved Bronze medal. 

SLSWA SURF LEAGUE 

It was a great moment to see Fremantle Field a team in each of the 
three Surf League Rounds. We used this event as an opportunity to 
give our younger competitors (James Currey, Amber Kinane, Jonny 
Kay, Kate Collins, Phoebe Ashworth, James Currey) the chance to 
stand up and compete against WA’s best Open competitors. 

FREMANTLE OCEAN CLASSIC 

This is a great event run by our Club, covering a range of swim 
distances from 500m, to 1600m and 3200m. Club swimmers 
excelled, with placings going to Finn Hussey, Poppy Rawlings, 
Charlotte Broad, Tracey Shaw and Ben Clarke in the 1600m. In the 
3200m event Archie Davis managed a lone first place. In the 2km 
teams event ,the top four relay teams where all from our Club -  “Just 
in Time”, “Fremantle Masters”, “FOC….Yeah” and “Freo Four”. 

Our Youth Female Surf Team (from left, Maeve McKenna, Lexi Menin, Ellie 
Fry, Phoebe Ashworth) picked up a Silver medal at States 

130+ Masters Female Surf Team (from left, Tracey Shaw, Jette Oksis, Fi 
Carroll) won Aussies bronze at Broadbeach 



 

 

A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 8 - 1 9 

Pool Rescue Report 
Craig Ashworth 

T 

his year, SLSWA split the overall Championship Points on offer 
and made Pool Rescue a standalone State Championship 

Event. Fremantle, with its great depth of swimmers all the way from 
Juniors through to Masters, competed valiantly to take out the 
Inaugural Pool Rescue Championship Trophy. This is a great 
achievement and testament to our competitors, coaches and 
supporters who pulled together to win this prestigious first trophy. 

We had a strong and reasonably large contingent of Swimmers in 
the Junior and Masters 
divisions, but our 
numbers were a bit light 
on in the Youth and 
Senior ranks. That said, 
those who competed did 
so to the best of their 
abilities and made a 
valuable contribution to 
the total points score. 

Overall, as a club, we finished with a grand total of 576 points, 56.5 
points clear of second place Trigg Island. Dissecting the points tally 
in different ways, we can see the contributions from every one of 
our various teams -  

• Overall Female – 211 points (2nd) 

• Overall Men – 365 points (1st) 

• Juniors Male and Female -   215 points (1st) 

• Seniors Male and Female -  167 points (equal 2nd) 

• Masters Male and Female -  194 points (1st) 

Many competitors earned vital points for our Club in their respective 
events, but to achieve such a great finish, there had to be some 
standout performances, which resulted in a record medal haul. In 
total, we finished with a total of 89 medals, made up of 40 Gold, 23 
Silver and 26 Bronze. The list of medal winners is just too long to list 
here, but can be seen in the Appendix towards the end of this 
report. 

At completion of the Championships, the Western 
Suns Pool Rescue Team was announced, with three of our members 
being rewarded for their success at the State Championships -  
Harrison Hynes (U17), TJ Chong Sue (U15) and Kelton Rothnie (U14). 
Tracey Shaw was also called on to represent the State in the 
Western Suns relay teams after the withdrawal of another 
competitor on the day of the Australian Pool Rescue 
Championships.  

The Australian Pool Rescue 
Championships were held in 
Adelaide, and we had seven 
competitors make the trip 
over. It was a very successful 
Championships for our Club, 
bringing home 20 medals, 
comprising nine Gold, nine 
Silver and two Bronze. 
Standout performances were -  

• TJ Chong Sue -  six Gold, one Silver 

• Tracey Shaw -  two Gold, three Silver 

• Harrison Hynes -  one Gold, three Silver 

• Craig Ashworth -  three Silver, two Bronze 

• Kelton Rothnie -  two Silver 

In the Interstates events, WA improved to take third position behind 
NSW and Queensland (who tied for first place). Outstanding results 
from the WA Teams in which Fremantle members competed saw 
six First Places, one Second and one Third, as well as TJ Chong Sue 
setting four new Australian records. The highlight of the 
Championships, however, was seeing Mike Shaw enter the pool and 
bring home a Silver Medal with Craig Ashworth in the Line Throw -  
his first, last and only Pool Rescue event ever! 

Aussies Pool Rescue medallists - from left, TJ Chong Sue, Tracey Shaw, Harrison Hynes, 
Craig Ashworth and Kelton Rothnie 

A fantastic contribution from all age groups -  Juniors, Seniors and Masters, seen here proudly holding the inaugural Pool Rescue Championship Cup 
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Ski Captain Report 
Annabelle Standing 

O 

ur Fremantle Ski Paddlers trained hard and performed well in 
the 2018-19 season. We had high numbers of open, masters 

and young paddlers at training throughout preseason and leading 
into summer, with new paddlers stepping up and our experienced 
athletes leading the way. 

This year we saw high numbers at training from our U17 paddlers, 
which was reflected in our States numbers with a large number of 
athletes racing. The U17 men won a bronze medal in the ski relay 
and achieved placings in other team and individual events. Our 
U17’s performed very well this season and we look forward to what 
results they can achieve in the future.  

In the open category we had athletes competing throughout the 
season, which was great representation of Fremantle. We fielded a 
ski and taplin relay at the State Championships, which is fantastic 
due to the number of competitive athletes required for these two 
events. A standout result at the State Championships was Matthew 

Housham winning the silver medal in the U21 male single ski, well 
done Matt! 

Thanks to our coach Jon Standing for your hard work and support 
this season. Thanks also to Guy Power for the training programs and 
Kevin Housham for his support in running the training sessions. Most 
of all, thanks to the athletes who trained and raced this season, 
good job guys. Bring on next season! 

Open Club Champions —Annabelle Standing (above) and Mark Housham 

Matt Housham’s silver medal style at States 

Zan Gamble winning the Masters skis at Club Championships 
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Surf Boat Captain Report 
Nick Palmer 

T 

he focus on youth was maintained this year, with excellent 
numbers involved in preseason strength and conditioning and 

rowing coaching using the rowing ergometers. The club provided 
funding again for strength and conditioning and rowing coaches 
which has been invaluable for new rowers. 

The Albany Surf Craft Challenge held on the long weekend in June 
is becoming a regular event on the rower’s calendar. Two of our 
women’s crews competed, finishing second and third in the Open 
Women’s division, an outstanding effort. 

Waves were in short supply this season, with the exception of the 
country carnival at Denmark where excellent surf provided exciting 
racing and a memorable weekend for rowers. 

This season short course surf boat racing was introduced as 
championship events at the State and Australian Titles which was 
warmly welcomed by surf rowers. 

Competition 

Minnows – U19 Women: Sweep Colin Duffield, Sascha Martin, Daisy 
Trang, Tessa Miotti and Katie Grayson. Grace Keogh also trained 
and competed but was unable to make the State Titles. After a slow 
start and change of personnel these women gained confidence and 
experience attending several carnivals during the season. They had 
great success at the State Titles with a bronze medal in the Short 
Course race, following up with a silver in the Long Course race. A 
wonderful effort as a result of their hard work. 

Scallywags – Reserve Women: Sweep Nick Palmer, Bec Brook, 
Maddie Shaw, Sherrie Robson and Bianca Valencia. Jess Klessens 
and Nicola Rutty started with the crew however were unable to 
continue to the end of season. The crew regrouped late in the 
season and showed great promise at carnivals, competing at the 

State Titles and finishing sixth in the final of the Reserve Women. 
Great promise for the future. 

Forgers – Reserve Men: Sweep Darren Miller, Jake Silipo, Pat Horne, 
Nick Wilson and Sam Wichmann formed after Christmas. After 
several attempts at creating an U19 crew, Darren settled on a 
mixture of youth and maturity, Jake and Sam provided the 
experience combining with two new rowers in Pat and Nick. And 
what a great season they had rowing with courage and 
determination at Denmark in big surf and capping the season with a 
bronze medal in Reserve Men at the State Titles. 

HCM – Reserve Men: Sweep Colin Duffield, Andrew Halsall, Nick 
Palmer, Dean Davidson, Dave Gunther, had a great season working 
with Bob Myers while he gained his sweep accreditation. Dylan 
Ewart also competed with the crew but work commitments 
prevented his involvement at season’s end. The crew rowed at 
State Titles, but missed out on making the finals. Success was had 
at the Masters State Titles with a gold medal in 200+ Men. 

Fajitas: Open Men: Sweep Ben Gleeson, Andrew Robson, Liam 
Burke, Alec Vukovich and Jack Palmer. With one change of crew 
from last year this crew is the stalwart of rowing at Fremantle, a 

Minnows take silver medal at States 

Scallywags 

Forgers earned bronze at States 

HCM took home gold in the 200+ Masters 

Fajitas’ collect their silver medal at States 
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shining example of grit and determination. A highly competitive 
season culminated in a silver medal in the inaugural Short Course 
Surf Boat race and fourth in the Long Course race. Another 
outstanding year from the Fajitas. 

Most Improved Rower 

Tessa Miotti showed the way early with a 
dedicated preseason in the gym which lay 
the ground work for her role as part of the 
engine room in her crew. Always positive 
and eager to learn, her strength and 
rowing skills improved rapidly throughout 
the season. A role model for her crew and 
all rowers.  

Boat Person of the Year  

Bob Myers gained his sweep 
accreditation early in the season and took 
to improving his skill and technique 
through practice, requesting feedback 
and always enquiring. With a keen eye, 
enthusiasm, vigour for coaching and pithy 
comments he has assisted a number of 
rowers with stroke correction, technique 
improvement and attitude adjustment. A 
positive energetic force, continually 

demanding more from himself and others while always available to 
assist with rowing or maintenance. 

Handicap Surf Boat Race 

Five crews competed fiercely for the Lindsey Sojan trophy this year. 

The  winners of the Handicap Surf Boat Race were Colin Duffield 
(sweep), Jake Silipo, Alec Vukovich, Spencer Cranston and Katie 
Grayson. 

Officials 

Once again, our invaluable officials, Greg Whipp and Peter Wyburn 
came to the fore. All our rowers appreciate their involvement and 

recognised that with a small presentation made to them at the 
rowers’ end of year windup. Thank you Greg and Peter. 

Sponsors 

Our Board of Directors approved the purchase and award of a 
framed presentation to Alex Bajada and Larry and Margaret Tilbury 

as our major surf boat sponsors. Their kind donations have ensured 
our equipment is of the highest quality and suitable for competition. 

Special Mention 

Thank you to Tony Silipo and Karen Carmody for their support, 
BBQ’s, breakfasts, driving, carnival pack up, coffees and the use of 
their house for our end of year windup. 

Our culture and competitive edge have improved again this season 
with excellent numbers rowing and terrific results at the State 
Championships. Training has stepped up a level while camaraderie 
and sheer enjoyment has been evident throughout all crews and 
supporters. It has been wonderful to see our rowing community 
expand and develop with parents and friends attending and 
becoming involved our passion – surf rowing. 

Larry and Margaret Tilbury receive their award from Nick Palmer 

Surf boat medallists at the State Championships at Scarboro 
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Masters Captain Report 
Fi Carroll 

I t has been another action-packed and successful season for the 
Freo Masters! The season opened with the Pool Rescue State 

Championships.  We had so many Masters teams competing which 
really helped Fremantle get over the line and take out the Inaugural 
Pool Rescue Trophy.  It was a great atmosphere around the pool and 
there was huge excitement with the announcement of Fremantle 
being the Championship Club. 

Pre-season training commenced in September in readiness for “The 
Worlds” at Glenelg Beach in Adelaide.  What we didn’t know was 
that we were going to be competing one day in 35 degrees and the 
next day in 10 degrees, I don’t think we have ever experienced such 
cold weather whilst competing!!!  Tracey and I finished the 
competition with blue lips and goose bumps and our Manager, Mr 
Mike Shaw, had emptied out the merchandise tent of all their warm 
jumpers and wet weather gear in size XXXXL !!!  It was a wonderful 
experience and we were thrilled to bring home three bronze medals 
and very content to celebrate with some beautiful wines from the 
Adelaide Hills and McLaren Vale. 

Early in the season, we had a big group 
of new Masters complete their Bronze 
Medallion course with our Special 
Master himself, Dave Carbon.  Many of 
them were keen to compete and 
trained hard over the summer months 
to prepare themselves for the State 
Masters in March. 

After much training on the sand and 
the ocean, the Masters State Carnival 
rolled around and what a great competition it was.  The Freo Masters 
were unstoppable on the sand, finishing second overall! We did an 
outstanding job in the beach relays with no disqualifications and no 
dropped batons and everyone -  I mean everyone, even ‘Wato’ -  had a 
run!!  There were some outstanding results with the 200+ Male Beach 
Relay team (comprising David Carbon, Jack, Matt and Kevin) winning 

gold, followed by the female 170+ team (made up of Maryann, Anne-

Marie, Cherie and myself) also winning gold. A highlight would have 
to be the 200+ female 
beach relay which was 
made up of a few 
competitors running 
together for the very 
first time (awesome 
job Trace, Pip, Jacqui 
and Caz!!).  They gave 
it their all and took 
home the bronze!!   

We also had some great results on the water.  Tracey, Jette and 
myself took out the gold in both the 130+ board relay and the surf 
teams race and our fellow female team, comprising Jacqui, Emma 
and Pip, won bronze in the same events in the 150+ category.  It was 
great to see both female teams medalling in the team events!  In the 
male arena, Ben, Matt and Brad claimed the gold medal in the 130+ 
surf teams race.  There was also a lot of individual success 
throughout the day. 

Most of the Master “Water Babes” hit the sand for States this year, so 
the pressure is now on for the “Beach Babes” to hit the water for 
States 2020 (your training regime starts now!!). 

I am always inspired watching Masters competing for the first time at 
States.  I see their nerves on display early in the day and then 
experience their joy as they settle and begin to enjoy the competition 
and the team camaraderie.  And the best thing for me is that they 
always come back for more! 

The next stop for a small group of Masters was Kurrawa Beach, on 
the Gold Coast, for Aussies.  The swell was up and the current was 
strong but Tracey, Jette, Ben and I all gave it our best shot in very 
challenging  conditions.  It was extremely exciting to win a bronze 
medal in the Surf Teams Race and see Jette claim her first Aussie 
medal.  Another excuse for a big celebration!! 

A big thank to our board coach, Matt Elliott (a Master himself), who 
started coaching early in September to prepare our Worlds 
competitors, continued training the Fremantle Seniors and Masters 
through the summer months in readiness for States and then 
coached us through to Aussies in April.  Your support, guidance and 
commitment throughout the season is amazing and very much 
appreciated.   

It is a privilege to captain 
this wonderful group of 
Master athletes and I’m 
excited about what we can 
achieve in the 2019-20 
season.  

BRING IT ON!!!!!  

  

In the surf, Jon Standing, Emma Moir, Jacqui Sydes, Matt Elliott, Brad Ravenscroft, Ben Clarke 

Jay Morgan, John Marsh, Marcin Gabriel, Ben Clarke, Martin Jackson, Kevin Housham, John Marsh, David Carbon 

Craig Ashworth, Tony Watson, Matt Elliott, Tim Gibbons, James Birkmanis, Jodie Pink 

Beachies Jack Dowie, Maryann Kelleher, Jette Oksis, Marcin Gabriel, Martin 
Jackson and Ken Ringrose 
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IRB Captain Report 
Kitty Eichner 

T 

he 2018-19 IRB season has been another great year for the 
Fremantle IRB Team. Despite strong competition from other 

clubs, our IRB racing team have shown great resilience and 
dedication to improving the sport. Across the state IRB racing has 
increased in popularity in recent years, with more and more clubs 
competing each year. I am proud of the progress our Racing Team 
has made this season in regard to skill development and it is our 
Trainers and Coaches who can take credit for the high level of skill 
and racing that Fremantle exhibit. Thank you to Head Coach John 
Summers and Trainers Jodie Pink, Ben Pink, and Jess Klessens for 
their endless support over the season. 

IRB competition is about so much more than just the medals we 
take home at the end of the season. The simulated rescue scenarios 
allow competitors to put their skills to the test, it brings crews 
together to discuss and improve IRB techniques and operations, 
and it promotes safety awareness techniques for the crew and 
patients. For this past season, the Fremantle IRB Leadership Team 
had a focused goal of youth development and it is great to see so 
many new faces at our training sessions. As the Team welcomes 
new members, we are excited to see so many more blue and yellow 
caps on the beach and in the boats.  

A highlight of the 2018-19 season for the IRB Team was competing 
at the Lifesaving World Championship in November last year. A 
small but determined team consisting of John Summers (Coach), 
Kitty Eichner (Captain), Jack Palmer, Jake Silipo, Grace Keogh, 

Bianca Jervis and Jessica Leng, 
travelled to Adelaide to 
represent Fremantle on the 
world stage. Despite fierce 
competition and delayed racing 
due to a very shallow bank, 
Fremantle raced exceptionally 
well. Unfortunately, we came 
home without medals, but we 
were not empty handed. The 
experiences we had and the 
level of competition we 
witnessed were unlike any other 
and to have the opportunity to 
compete at an International 
level in the sport we love was 
incredible.  

The IRB Person of the Year 
award is presented annually 
to a member of the Fremantle 

IRB Team for extraordinary contribution to the sport in a number of 
areas. The award honours an IRB person who embodies 
commitment and dedication to the team whether it be through 
racing, patrols, water safety or education. Our IRB person of the year 
for the 2018-19 season was Jack Palmer who epitomises all of the 
characteristics we expect of an IRB leader. Jack has raced for a 
number of seasons, brought home a swag of state medals and 
contributed a large number of points to the team. He has taken on 
the role of a trainer and has assisted in training up both new crews 
and drivers. He has also spent an enormous number of hours doing 
water safety and is always putting his hand up to help set up and 
pack away after carnivals. The atmosphere of sportsmanship and 
camaraderie that this created was truly special.  

Aside from racing, our IRB drivers and crews make up an essential 
part of our patrolling members and it is often the IRB team who are 
called upon to assist with water safety both at home carnivals and 
away. I’d like to say a massive thank you to everyone who has 
volunteered their time to assist with water safety. It is important to 
remember that no surf lifesaving carnivals would run if these 
people didn’t volunteer their time to make sure competitions are 
safe.  

Finally, I would like to thank our sponsors for their continuing 
support over the season. 

Female Teams Silver Medal winner 
“Starfish” (Kitty Eichner, Jess Klessens, Jess 
Leng, Jack Palmer, Ben Pink, Sheri Robson) 

Fremantle competitors at the Lifesaving World Championships at Glenelg 

IRB Person of the Year, Jack Palmer (right), with John Summers 

Ben Pink (right) and James Birkmanis getting some air 
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Juniors Surf Sports Report 
Neil Dickson 

W 

hat a quick season it was this year! 

This season, we ran both the Little Nipper Carnivals (U8 and 
U9) and the regular Nipper Carnivals at various locations through 
the Metro area, including the Country Carnival this year at Denmark. 
There was great attendance at all events with Fremantle regularly 
having the third largest number of competitors amongst all clubs. 

Little Nippers 

Our youngest competitors competed in three carnivals, with the 
State Championships being held at Sorrento. These Carnivals are 
aimed at introducing our kids to surf sports in a less competitive 
environment. They get used to course layouts, having events run by 
officials (as opposed to parents) and the thrills of parents and family 
cheering them on. Events include beach sprints, flag, surf race 
(swim) and board race. There was great attendance at all events 
with many close run events. A special congratulations goes to Ella 
Cameron (U8) who came 3rd in beach sprints. 

Nippers 

After three Carnivals and a State Qualifier, we were off to Scarboro 
for the State Championships. The conditions over both days were 
good for Trigg. The forecasted breeze and swell did not materialise 
which gave us some great, fun conditions. Our teams came back 
with 4 golds, 6 silver and 14 bronze. Congratulations to all medal 
winners -  you are all listed in the table at the back of this report. 

Overall we finished joint 5th with Mullaloo. 

Country Carnival 

Well, I think this was an 
experience for everyone. With 
swell and wave strength up to 
five times that which we have 
experienced even at Trigg, this 
was the ultimate challenge for 
both our Little Nippers and 
regular Nippers. The week 
leading into the events was 
poor with lots of rain and cloud 
but by the time the weekend 
came around, someone was 
looking out for us. Our Nippers 
were all a bit daunted to start 
with but they all stepped up to 
take on the waves and I know 
you all impressed your parents 
with your bravery and skills. 

Thanks 

Our Carnivals only run well 
thanks to all our volunteers. For 
each carnival we need officials, 
water safety, IRB Crew and 
Drivers for various arenas. 

Without these volunteers, our club is not allowed to compete at 
these events. A big thank you to our core group of parents that 
regularly commit time to help. For next season we will need more 
assistance so please let us know where you can help. We need 
people able to help with these roles for each age group. Helping 
gives you the chance to get up close to all the action and have 
some fun. 

See you all next year. 

Alexander Merry won gold in the U12 

        1 km beach run at States 

Our U12 Male Surf Team (from right, Thomas Dreverman, Kalani Chong Sue, 
Marc Dickson and Liam McGuigan) brought home the gold ! 

Gold medal performance by Jess Stackhouse in the U13 Female Board Race 

Our U10 Female Surf Team (from right, Niamh Dickson, Hannah Morkel, 
Jemima Paterson, Evie Lila Hussey) took the bronze medal at States 
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Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Directors Report 

Your Directors submit the financial report of Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc for the eleven months ended 31 March 2019. 

Board members 

The names of board members throughout the year and at the date of this report are: 

  Cath Morgan - President 
  Jack Dowie -  Vice President & Director of Surf Sports 

  James Birkmanis – Director of Administration 

  John Summers – Director of Lifesaving & Education 

  John Skipsey – Director of Development 
  Tony Silipo – Director of Finance 

  Anne-Marie Nunes – Club Captain 

 

Principal activities 

The principal activities of the association during the financial year were to provide surf lifesaving training and services to members and 
the community. 

Significant changes 

No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the period. 

Operating result 

The profit from ordinary activities amounted to $98,290. 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors. 

 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 
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Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Income and Expenditure Statement 
For the Eleven Months ended 31 March 2019 

 Note 2019 2018 

  $ $ 

Income 

Revenue 2a 733,786 761,419 

Total revenue  733,786 761,419 

 

Expenses 

COGS – Bar, canteen, uniform shop 2a (75,868) (84,636) 

Administration & payroll expenses  (167,566) (171,549) 

Lifesaving & Education expenses  (16,299) (19,269) 

Juniors & Youth expenses  15,428 (19,790) 

Vehicle and equipment expenses  (20,081) (21,312) 

Competition expenses  (28,954) (44,478) 

Direct costs membership fees  (25,180) (22,837) 

Depreciation expenses 2b (139,512) (149,720) 

Social & fundraising & marketing expenses  (23,464) (38,342) 

Building related expenses  (109,033) (132,599) 

Premises hire expenses  (5,201) (6,367) 

Other expenses  (8,910) (7,589) 

Total expenses  (635,496) (718,488) 

Surplus for the year  98,290 42,931 

 ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 
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Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Statement of Financial Position 

As at 31 March 2019 

 Note 2019 2018 

  $ $ 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash & cash equivalents 3 290,411 235,662 

Accounts receivables and other debtors 4 59,201 38,795 

Inventories 5 82,170 102,065 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  376,522 

 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Property, plant & equipment 6 3,273,529 3,358,034 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  3,273,529 3,358,034 

TOTAL ASSETS  3,715,311 3,734,556 

 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and other payables 7 62,915 43,844 

Lease liabilities 8 -  5,164 

Employee provisions 9 15,872 5,400 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  78,787 54,408 

 

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Other liabilities 10 1,561,053 1,702,967 

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES  1,561,053 1,702,967 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  1,639,840 1,757,375 

NET ASSETS  2,075,471 1,977,181 

 

MEMBERS’ FUNDS 

Retained surplus 11 2,075,471 1,977,181 

TOTAL MEMBERS’ FUNDS  2,075,471 1,977,181 

 ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 
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Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Statement of Changes in Equity 

As at 31 March 2019 

  Retained 

  Surplus Total 

  $ $ 

฀฀฀฀฀฀฀฀฀฀Balance at 1 May 2017  1,934,250 1,934,250 

Deficit for year  42,931 42,931 

Balance at 30 April 2018  1,977,181 1,977,181 

  ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 

Balance at 1 May 2018  1,977,181 1,977,181 

Surplus for eleven month period  98,290 98,290 

Balance at 31 March 2019  2,075,471 2,075,471 

Statement of Cash Flows 

As at 31 March 2019 

  March April 

  2019 2018 

  $ $ 

Cash from operating activities    

Receipts from members, sponsors and customers  530,998 610,171 

Payments to suppliers and employees  (446,546) (572,945) 

Interest received  2,624 1,825 

Net cash provided by operating activities  87,076 39,051 

 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Net purchase of plant & equipment  (27,163) (44,266) 

Net cash used in investing activities  (27,163) (44,266) 

 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Repayment of borrowings  (5,164) (11,981) 

Net cash used in financing activities  (5,164) (11,981) 

 

Net cash (decrease) in cash held  54,749 (17,196) 

Cash at beginning of financial year  235,662 252,858 

Cash at end of financial year  290,411 235,662 

  ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 
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Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Eleven Months Ended 31 March 2019 

Note 1: Statement of significant accounting policies 

This financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared in order to satisfy the financial reporting requirements of the 
Associations Incorporation Act Western Australia. The board has determined that the association is not a reporting entity. 

The report, except for the cash flow information, has been prepared on an accruals basis in that it accounts for debtors, creditors, 
employee provisions and prepaid building lease income, but has not included other accruals and prepayments in order to be consistent 
with year accounting treatment.. The report is based on historic costs and does not take into account changing money values, or except 
where specifically stated, current valuations of non-current assets. 

The following material accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless otherwise stated, have been adopted in 
the preparation of this financial report. 

(a) Income tax 

No provision for income tax has been raised as the association is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax 
Assessment Act 1997. 

(b) Property, plant and equipment 

Property 

Freehold land and buildings are measured at their fair value (being the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between 
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction), based on periodic, but at least triennial, valuations by external 
independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings.  

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to a revaluation surplus in equity. 
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against fair value reserves directly in equity. Decreases 
that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against fair value reserves directly in equity; all other decreases are 
charged to the statement of comprehensive income.  

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net 
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. 

Plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis.  

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by the committee to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable 
amount of those assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows which will be received 
from the assets’ employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have not been discounted to their present 
values determining recovering amounts. 

 Depreciation 

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, excluding land and buildings, are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets to the 
association commencing from the time the asset was held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the 
shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease of the estimated useful lives of the improvements.  

(c) Cash on hand 

Cash on hand included cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short term highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less. 

(d) Accounts receivable and other debtors 

Accounts receivable and other debtors includes amounts due from customers. Receivable expected to be collected within 12 
months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All other receivable are classified as non-current assets. 

(e) Revenue and other income 

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate financial assets is the rate inherent in the 
instrument.   

Grant and donation income is recognised when the entity obtains control over the funds, which is generally at the time of receipt. 

If conditions are attached to the grant that must be satisfied before the association is eligible to receive the contribution, 
recognition of the grant as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are satisfied. 

Cash receipts are recognised as income when they are deposited into the bank account 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax. 

(f) Goods and services tax (GST) 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not 
recoverable from the Australia Taxation Office (ATO). Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST 
receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or 
payables in the assets and liabilities statement. 

(g) Accounts payable and other payables 

Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for goods and services 
received by the association during the reporting period that remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the 
amounts normally paid within 30 days or recognition of the liability. ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 
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Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Eleven Months Ended 31 March 2019 

Note 1 : Statement of significant accounting policies continued 

(h) Employee provisions 

Provision is made for the association’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to the end of 
the reporting period. Employee provisions have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled  

(i) Leases 

Leases of PPE, where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset (but not the legal ownership) 
are transferred to the association, are classified as finance leases. 

Finance leases are capitalised by recording an asset and a liability at the lower of the amounts equal to the fair value of the leased 
property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are 
allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for that period 

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight- line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease term. Lease 
payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses in the 
periods in which they are incurred 

(j) Impairment of assets 

At the end of each reporting period, the committee reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out 
on the asset by comparing the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and 
value in use, to the asset’s carrying amount. Any excess of the asset’s carrying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised 
in the income and expenditure statement 

(k) Inventories on hand 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value. 

(l) Change of accounting period 

It should be noted that the Club changed its financial year end to 31 March 2019 as per a resolution passed at the Annual General 
Meeting in June 2018. Therefore the figures to 31 March 2019 are for an eleven month period, the comparative figures for 2018 are for a 
twelve month period. 

  11 Months 12 Months 

  2019 2018 

  $ $ 

Note 2a :  Income 

Sales – bar, canteen & uniform shop (2017 net of costs)  96,791 113,274 

Membership fees  210,911 184,299 

Other membership and hire fees  10,184 10,384 

Donations  66,877 38,996 

Education  14,636 9,749 

Sponsorship  44,273 73,260 

Grants received  5,000 10,000 

Interest received  2,624 1,825 

Competition   23,249 31,862 

Camp fees  12,296 15,351 

Club rental & hire income  36,396 44,472 

Sub lease expense recoupment  43,266 50,126 

Subsidies income  1,200 4,435 

Social & Fundraising  14,179 25,208 

Prepaid building lease income  141,914 141,914 

Sundry  9,990 6,264 

  733,786 761,419 

Note 2b : Expenses 

Depreciation -  building  93,355 93,355 

Depreciation – plant & equipment  45,863 44,859 

Depreciation – leased vehicle  294 11,506 

  139,512 149,720 
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Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Eleven Months Ended 31 March 2019 

  March April 

  2019 2018 

  $ $ 

Note 3 : Cash at Bank 

Cheque account  19,991 27,928 

Cash management account  107,102 6,873 

Credit card account  306 307 

Prime rescue account  5,153 5,030 

Term deposit – Building fund  70,477 69,760 

Term deposit – General reserves  86,872 125,254 

Cash floats  510 510 

  290,411 235,662 

Note 4 : Accounts receivables & other debtors 

Trade debtors  68,364 31,852 

GST refund due  382 6,943 

Prepayments  455 -  

  69,201 38,795 

Note 5 : Inventories 

Bar  2,219 5,786 

Canteen  318 281 

Training manuals  1,120 704 

Uniform Shop  78,513 95,294 

  82,170 102,065 

Note 6 : Property, plant & equipment 

Building at cost  3,740,822 3,740,822 

Less accumulated depreciation  653,485 560,130 

  3,087,337 3,180,692 

Plant & equipment at cost  684,028 700,412 

Less accumulated depreciation  502,336 527,865 

  181,692 172,547 

Leased assets at cost  34,519 34,519 

Less accumulated depreciation  30,019 29,724 

  4,500 4,795 

Total property, plant and equipment  3,273,529 3,358,034 

a) Movements in carrying amounts 

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the current 
financial year. 

 Buildings Plant & Leased Total 
  equipment asset 

 $ $ $ $ 

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,180,692 172,547 4,795 3,358,034 

Additions -  27,163 -  27,163 

In kind additions -  27,884 -  27,884 

Depreciation expense (93,355) (45,862) (295) (139,512) 

 3,087,337 181,692 4,500 3,273,529 
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Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Eleven Months Ended 31 March 2019 

  March April 

  2019 2018 

  $ $ 

Note 7 : Accounts payable and other creditors 

Trade creditors  28,718 27,325 

PAYGW  4,654 10,440 

Superannuation payable  2,401 3,941 

Accrued wages   -  2,138 

General Accruals  27,142 -  

  62,915 43,844 

Note 8 : Lease liabilities 

Finance lease capitalised in the accounts in accordance with the accounting policy defined in Note 1 (i) 
Payable – minimum lease payments 

Not later than 12 months  -  5,225 

Between 12 months and five years  -  -  

Minimum lease payments  -  5,225 

Less future finance charges  -  61 

Total lease liability  -  5,164 

Note 9 : Employee provisions 

Employee leave provisions  15,872 5,400 

 ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 

Note 10 : Other liabilities 

Building lease prepayment  2,554,451 2,554,451 

Less accumulated amortisation of lease prepayment  993,398 851,484 

Total lease liability  1,561,053 1,702,967 

 ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 

The building lease prepayment is the cost incurred by the builder at the time of construction of the new premises, this was offset by the 
granting of a twenty year lease entitlement on the café premises of the building. This prepayment of building lease is being amortised 
over eighteen years being the time construction was completed to the end of the lease period i.e 2030. 

 

Note 11 : Retained Surplus 

Surplus at the beginning of the financial year  1,977,181 1,934,250 

Current year surplus (deficit)  98,290 42,391 

Retained surplus at the end of the financial year  2,075,471 1,977,181 

 

Note 12 : Cash flow information 

Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities with 

Net current year surplus  98,290 42,931 

Non cash flows in current year surplus 

Depreciation   139,512 149,720 

Amortisation of prepaid building lease  (141,914) (141,914) 

Changes in assets and liabilities  

(increase) decrease in accounts receivable  (30,406) (7,149) 
(increase) decrease in inventory  19,895 (53,781) 
Increase in accounts payable  19,071 43,844 

Increase in employee provisions  10,472 5,400 

Net cash flow from operating activities  87,076 39,051 

 ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 

฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 
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In accordance with a resolution of the board of Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc, the members of the board declare that the financial 
statements as set out on pages I to 12 : 

1. Present a true and fair view of the financial position of Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc as at 31 March 2019 and its performance 
for the year ended on that date in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note I to the financial report and the 
requirements of the Associations Incorporations Act Western Australia. 

2. At the date of this statement that are reasonable grounds to believe that Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they fall due, 

This statement is signed for and on behalf of the board by: 

Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Directors Statement 
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National and State Medals 2018- 2019 

Life Saving World Championships (Glenelg) 
 

30-34 F 200m Obstacle Race Bronze Alicia Anderson 

40-44 F Surf Race  Bronze Fiona Carroll 
40-44 F Board rescue  Bronze Tracey Shaw, Fiona Carroll 
110-129 F Surf Teams  Bronze Alicia Anderson, Fiona Carroll, 
     Tracey Shaw 

 

Interstates Pool Rescue Championships (Adelaide) 
 

U/15 M 200m Obstacle Race Gold # Tupou Chong Sue 

U/17 M 200m Obstacle Race Gold Harrison Hynes 

14/15 M Relay   Bronze Tupou Chong Sue, 
     Kelton Rothnie 

17/19 M 4x50m Obstacle Rly Silver Harrison Hynes 

U/15 M 100m Mkin Tow/Fins Gold # Tupou Chong Sue 

U/15 M 200m Super lifesaver Gold # Tupou Chong Sue 

U/15 M 50m Manikin Carry Gold Tupou Chong Sue 

U/15 M 100m Rescue Medley Gold # Tupou Chong Sue 

 (# indicates setting a new Australian record) 
 

Australian Pool Rescue Championships (Adelaide) 
 

35-39 M 200m Obstacle Race Silver Craig Ashworth 

50-54 F 200m Obstacle Race Gold Tracey Shaw 

U/14 M 200m Obstacle Race Gold Tupou Chong Sue 

U/16 M 200m Obstacle Race Gold Harrison Hynes 

30-39 M 12m Line Throw Silver Craig Ashworth, Mike Shaw 

U/14 M 100m Mkin Tow Fins Gold Tupou Chong Sue 

35-39 M 100m Mkin Tow Fins Bronze Craig Ashworth 

50-54 F 100m Mkin Tow Fins Silver Tracey Shaw 

U/14 M 200m Super Lifesaver Gold Tupou Chong Sue 

50-54 F 50m Mkin Carry Silver Tracey Shaw 

35-39 M 50m Mkin Carry Bronze Craig Ashworth 

U/14 M 50m Mkin Carry Gold Tupou Chong Sue 

50-54 F 100m Mkin Carry Fins Gold Tracey Shaw 

35-39 M 100m Mkin Carry Fins Silver Craig Ashworth 

U/14 M 100m Mkin Carry Fins Gold Tupou Chong Sue 

U/16 M 100m Mkin Carry Fins Silver Harrison Hynes 

U/13 M 50m Swim with Fins Silver Kelton Rothnie 

U/14 M 50m Swim with Fins Silver Tupou Chong Sue 

U/16 M 50m Swim with Fins Silver Harrison Hynes 

U/14 M 100m Rescue Medley Gold Tupou Chong Sue 

 

Australian Surf Life Saving Championships (Broadbeach) 
 

130 F Surf Teams  Bronze Fi Carroll, Jette Oksis, 
     Tracey Shaw 

40-44 F Board Rescue  Bronze Fi Carroll, Tracey Shaw 

 

Junior State Pool Rescue Championships (HBF Stadium) 
   

U/10 M 100m Obstacles Gold Brodie Gooding 

U/11 M 100m Obstacles Gold Thomas Deverman 

    Silver Kalani Chong Sue 

U/12 M 100m Obstacles Silver Eben Prinsloo 

U/13 M 100m Obstacles Gold Jack Della-Marta 

U/13 F 100m Obstacles Silver Maeve McKenna 

U10/11 M 4x50m Obst Relay Gold Kalani Chong Sue, Samson  
     Connelly, Thomas Dreverman, 
     Brodie Gooding 

U12/13 M 4x50m Obst Relay Gold Johann Szymanski, Angus 

     McLachlan, Jack Della-Marta, 
     Jake Gooding 

U12/13 F 4x50m Obst Relay Silver Milan Bazley, Cameron Currey,  
     Jessica Gooding, 
     Maeve McKenna 

U10/11 M 4x25m P Tow/Fins Gold Kalani Chong Sue, 
     Thomas Dreverman 

U12/13 F 4x25m P Tow/Fins Silver Jessica Gooding, 
     Maeve McKenna 

U/10 M 50m Freestyle/Fins Gold Brodie Gooding 

U/11 M 50m Freestyle/Fins Gold Kalani Chong Sue 

    Silver Thomas Dreverman 

U/12 M 50m Freestyle/Fins Bronze Eben Prinsloo 

U/13 M 50m Freestyle/Fins Gold Jack Della-Marta 

    Silver Liam Pizzirani 
U/13 F 50m Freestyle/Fins Gold Maeve McKenna 

U/12 M 10m Line Throw Silver Eben Prinsloo, Jake Gooding 

U/13 F 10m Line Throw Silver Milan Bazley, Maeve McKenna 

U10/11 M 4x25m Brick Relay Gold Kalani Chong Sue, Samson 

     Connelly, Thomas Dreverman, 
      Brodie Gooding 

U12/13 M 4x25m Brick Relay Gold Johann Szymanski, Eben 

     Prinsloo, Jack Della-Marta, 
     Jake Gooding 

U/10 M 50m Brick Carry  25m Silver Brodie Gooding 

U/11 M 50m Brick Carry  25m Gold Kalani Chong Sue 

    Silver Thomas Dreverman 

U/12 M 50m Brick Carry  25m Bronze Eben Prinsloo 

U/13 M 50m Brick Carry  25m Gold Jack Della-Marta 

    Bronze Liam Pizzirani 
U/13 F 50m Brick Carry  25m Bronze Jessica Gooding 

U10/11 M 4x50m Mdly Relay Gold Kalani Chong Sue, Samson 

     Connelly, Thomas Dreverman, 
     Brodie Gooding 

U12/13 M 4x50m Mdly Relay Gold Johann Szymanksi, Jake 

     Gooding, Liam Pizzirani, 
     Jack Della-Marta 
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Junior State Championships (Scarborough) 
 

U/10 F Surf Teams  Bronze Niamh Dickson, Hannah 

     Morkel, Jemima Paterson, 
     Evie Lila Hussey 

U/12 M 1 KM Run  Gold Alexander Merry 

U/12 M Beach Flags  Bronze Jordan Krieser 
U/12 M Beach Sprint  Bronze Kalani Chong Sue 

U/12 M Board Relay  Bronze Marc Dickson, Thomas 

     Dreverman, Joel Ellery 

U/12 M Board Rescue  Bronze Marc Dickson, 
     Thomas Dreverman 

U/12 M Cameron Relay Bronze Kalani Chong Sue, Alexander 
     Merry, Lachlan Sofield, 
     Thomas Dreverman 

U/12 M Ironman  Silver Thomas Dreverman 

U/12 M Surf Race  Bronze Kalani Chong Sue 

U/12 M Surf Teams  Gold Thomas Dreverman, Kalani 
     Chong Sue, Marc Dickson, 
     Liam McGuigan 

U/13 F Board Race  Gold Jess Stackhouse 

U/13 F Board Relay  Bronze Lexi Menin, Jess Stackhouse, 
     Gabrielle Gibbons 

U/13 F Board Rescue  Gold Jess Stackhouse, 
     Gabrielle Gibbons 

    Bronze Ava Forrest, Lexi Menin 

U/13 F Cameron Relay Bronze Claire Dean, Ava Forrest, 
     Cameron Currey, 
     Jess Stackhouse 

U/13 F Surf Teams  Silver Lexi Menin, Ava Forrest, 
     Imogen Ashworth, 
     Gabrielle Gibbons 

U/13 M 1 KM Run  Bronze Eben Prinsloo 

U/13 M Board Race  Silver Eben Prinsloo 

U/13 M Board Relay  Bronze Eben Prinsloo, Jake Gooding, 
     Nicholas Collins 

U/13 M Board Rescue  Bronze Nicholas Collins, 
     Eben Prinsloo 

U/13 M Cameron Relay Bronze Soli Ashe, Nicholas Collins, 
     Eben Prinsloo, Bryce Jakovich 

U/13 M Ironman  Silver Eben Prinsloo 

U/13 M Surf Teams  Silver Jake Gooding, Nicholas 

     Collins, Jonah Whitby, 
     Eben Prinsloo 

 

Senior State Pool Rescue Championships (HBF Stadium) 
 

U/14 M 200m Obstacles Gold Kelton Rothnie 

U/15 M 200m Obstacles Gold Tupou Chong Sue 

U/15 M 200m Obstacles Gold Alison Webb 

U/17 M 200m Obstacles Silver Harrison Hynes 

U/17 F 200m Obstacles Bronze Meesha Rothnie 

Open F 200m Obstacles Bronze Tracey Shaw 

Open M 12.5m Line Throw Gold Craig Ashworth, 
     Harrison Hynes 

    Bronze Matthew Coleman, 
     William Shaw 

Open F 12.5m Line Throw Bronze Meesha Rothnie, Tracey Shaw 

U/14 M 50m Freestyle Fins Gold Kelton Rothnie 

U/14 F 50m Freestyle  Fins Gold Phoebe Ashworth 

U/15 M 50m Freestyle Fins Gold Tupou Chong Sue 

U/15 F 50m Freestyle Fins Silver Alison Webb 

U/17 M 50m Freestyle Fins Gold Harrison Hynes 

U/17 F 50m Freestyle Fins Bronze Meesha Rothnie 

Open F 50m Freestyle Fins Bronze Tracey Shaw 

U/14 M 100m Mkin Tow Fins Gold Kelton Rothnie 

U/15 M 100m Mkin Tow Fins Gold Tupou Chong Sue 

U/15 F 100m Mkin Tow Fins Bronze Alison Webb 

U/17 M 100m Mkin Tow Fins Gold Harrison Hynes 

U14/15 M 4x25m Mkin Relay Silver Tupou Chong Sue, James 

     Currey, Kelton Rothnie, 
     Nicholas Dart 
U/14 M 50m Mkin Carry Gold Kelton Rothnie 

U/15 M 50m Mkin Carry Gold Tupou Chong Sue 

U/17 M 50m Mkin Carry Gold Harrison Hynes 

U/15 M 100m Mkin Carry Fins Gold Tupou Chong Sue 

U/15 F 100m Mkin Carry Fins Bronze Alison Webb 

U/17 M 100m Rescue Medley Silver Harrison Hynes 

U/17 M 200m Super Lifesaver Gold Harrison Hynes 

   

 

Senior State Championships (Scarboro) 
 

Open M Sht Course Surf Boat Silver Fajitas (Liam Burke, Jack 

     Palmer, Andrew Robson, Alec 

     Vukovich, Ben Gleeson) 
U/14 F Beach Flags  Bronze Lily Stackhouse 

U/15 F Ironman  Bronze Phoebe Ashworth 

U/15 F Surf Race  Bronze Phoebe Ashworth 

U/15 M Ironman  Bronze Patrick Dart 
U/17 M Board Rescue  Bronze Finn Hussey, Nicholas Dart 
U/17 M Single Ski Relay Bronze Jonathon Kay, Zac Evans, 
     Nicholas Dart 
U/17 M Surf Teams  Silver Nicholas Dart, Tupou Chong 

     Sue, Finn Hussey, 
     Jonathon Kay 

U/19 F Sht Course Surf Boat Bronze Minnows (Sascha Martin, 
     Tessa Miotti, Katie Grayson, 
     Daisy Trang, Colin Duffield) 
U/19 F Surf Boat  Silver Minnows (Sascha Martin, 
     Tessa Miotti, Katie Grayson, 
     Daisy Trang, Colin Duffield) 
Open Reserve M Surf Boat Bronze Forgers (Pat Horne, Darren 

     Miller, Jake Silipo, Sam 

     Wichmann, Nick Wilson) 
U/21 M Single Ski  Silver Matthew Housham 

Youth F Cameron Relay Bronze Phoebe Ashworth, Lily 

     Stackhouse, Charlotte 

     Gibbons, Maeve McKenna 

Youth F Surf Teams  Silver Sienna Menin, Maeve 

     McKenna, Phoebe Ashworth, 
     Ellie Fry 

Youth M Board Rescue Bronze Kelly Rawlings, Patrick Dart 
Youth M Cameron Relay Silver Jack Hadley, Patrick Dart, 
     Archie Davis, Kelly Rawlings 

Youth M Surf Teams  Bronze Patrick Dart, Kelly Rawlings, 
     Archie Davis, Jack Della-Marta 

Youth Mixed 5 Person R&R Bronze Riley Stotten, Jason Dean, 
     Sally Clark, Aimee Moody, 
     Jack Della-Marta 

    
Masters State Pool Rescue Championships (HBF Stadium) 
 

30-39 M 200m Obstacles Bronze James Birkmanis 

30-39 F 200m Obstacles Silver Jodie Pink 

40+ M 200m Obstacles Bronze Tony Watson 

40+ F 200m Obstacles  Gold Fiona Carroll 
    Silver Tracey Shaw 

    Bronze Rachelle Doyle 

4x50m M Masters Obst Relay Gold Craig Ashworth, Matthew 

     Coleman, Ian McLachlan, 
     Mark Lewis 

4x50m F Masters Obst Relay Gold Jodie Pink, Rachelle Doyle, 
     Fiona Carroll, Tracey Shaw 

30-39 M 100m Mkin Tow Fins Silver James Birkmanis 

30-39 F 100m Mkin Tow Fins Silver Jodie Pink 

40+ F 100m Mkin Tow Fins Gold Fiona Carroll 
    Bronze Rachelle Doyle 

30-39 M 50m Freestyle Fins Gold James Birkmanis 

30-39 F 50m Freestyle Fins Gold Jodie Pink 
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40+ M 50m Freestyle Fins Bronze Tony Watson 

40+ F 50m Freestyle Fins Gold Fiona Carroll 
    Bronze Tracey Shaw 

Masters M 12.5m Line Throw Bronze Ian McLachlan, 
     Mark Lewis 

Masters F 12.5m Line Throw Silver Fiona Carroll, Tracey Shaw 

4x25m M Masters Manikin Rly Gold James Birkmanis, Tony  
     Watson, Tim Gibbons, 
     Matt Elliott 
    Bronze Craig Ashworth, Matthew 

     Coleman, Ian McLachlan, 
     Mark Lewis 

4x25m F Masters Manikin Rly Silver Fiona Carroll, Jette Oksis, 
     Tracey Shaw, Jodie Pink 

30-39 F 50m Manikin Carry Bronze Jodie Pink 

40+ M 50m Manikin Carry Bronze Tim Gibbons 

40+ F 50m Manikin Carry Bronze Tracey Shaw 

4x50m Masters M Mdly Relay Gold James Birkmanis, Tony 

     Watson, Tim Gibbons, 
     Matt Elliott 
    Bronze Craig Ashworth,   

     Matthew Coleman, Ian  
     McLachlan, Mark Lewis 

4x50m Masters F Mdly Relay Gold Fiona Carroll, Jette Oksis,  
     Tracey Shaw, Jodie Pink 

30-39 M 100m Mkin Carry Fins Bronze James Birkmanis 

30-39 F 100m Mkin Carry Fins Silver Jodie Pink 

40+ M 100m Main Carry Fins Bronze Tim Gibbons 

40+ F 100m Mkin Carry Fins Silver Fiona Carroll 
    Bronze Tracey Shaw 

 

Masters State Championships (Sorrento) 
 

110 Min M Single Ski Relay Bronze Ian Clarke, Brett Douglas, 
     Mark Sampson 

130 Min F Board Relay  Gold Fiona Carroll, Jette Oksis, 
     Tracey Shaw 

130 Min F Surf Teams Race Gold Fiona Carroll, Jette Oksis, 
     Tracey Shaw 

130 Min M Board Relay Bronze Ian Clarke, Jason Morgan, 
     Brad Ravenscroft 
130 Min M Surf Teams Race Gold Benedict Clarke, Matt Elliott, 
     Brad Ravenscroft 
150 Min F Board Relay  Bronze Philippa Hawson, Emma Moir, 
     Jacqui Sydes 

150 Min F Surf Teams Race Bronze Philippa Hawson, Emma Moir, 
     Jacqui Sydes 

170 Min F Beach Relay  Gold Fiona Carroll, Maryann 

     Kelleher, Cherie McLachlan, 
     Anne-Marie Nunes 

170 Min M Beach Relay Bronze Benedict Clarke, Marcin 

     Gabriel, John Marsh, 
     Jason Morgan 

200 Min F Beach Relay Bronze Philippa Hawson, Cath 

     Morgan, Tracey Shaw, 
     Jacqui Sydes 

200 Min M Beach Relay Gold David Carbon, Jack Dowie, 
     Matt Elliott, Kevin Housham 

30-34 F Beach Sprint  Bronze Anne-Marie Nunes 

35-39 F Beach Flags  Bronze Caroline Watson 

35-39 F Beach Sprint  Bronze Caroline Watson 

40-44 F Beach Flags  Silver Cherie McLachlan 

40-44 F Beach Run (2km) Silver Cherie McLachlan 

    Bronze Jette Oksis 

40-44 F Beach Sprint  Silver Cherie McLachlan 

40-44 F Board Race  Silver Fiona Carroll 
    Bronze Jette Oksis 

40-44 F Board Rescue  Silver Philippa Hawson, Jette Oksis 

40-44 F Surf Race  Gold Fiona Carroll 
40-44 M Beach Flags  Gold Marcin Gabriel 
40-44 M Beach Sprint  Bronze Marcin Gabriel 
45-49 F Board Rescue  Bronze Emma Moir, Jacqui Sydes 

45-49 M Beach Flags  Gold Benedict Clarke 

45-49 M Beach Sprint  Gold David Carbon 

    Silver John Marsh 

45-49 M Board Rescue Bronze Matt Elliott, Brad Ravenscroft 
50-54 F Beach Sprint  Silver Maryann Kelleher 
50-54 F Board Race  Gold Tracey Shaw 

50-54 F Surf Race  Silver Tracey Shaw 

50-54 M Single Ski  Silver Jon Standing 

55-59 M Beach Run (2km) Silver Jack Dowie 

55-59 M Beach Sprint  Silver Kevin Housham 

    Bronze Martin Jackson 

200+ M Surf Boat  Gold Colin Duffield, Andrew Halsall, 
     Nick Palmer, Dean Davidson, 
     David Gunther 
 

State IRB Championships (Trigg Island) 
 

Female IRB Mass Rescue Bronze Wobbegong (Jess Klessens, 
     Sheri Robson, Ben Pink, 
     Monique Morgan) 
Female IRB Single Rescue Bronze Wobbegong (Jess Klessens, 
     Sheri Robson, Moni Morgan) 
Female IRB Teams Rescue Silver Starfish (Kitty Eichner, Jess  
     Klessens, Jess Leng, Jack 

     Palmer, Ben Pink, 
     Sheri Robson) 
Female IRB Tube Rescue Bronze Numbats (Kitty Eichner,  
     Grace Keogh, Jack Palmer) 
Male IRB Mass Rescue  Bronze Spongebob (James Birkmanis, 
     Monique Morgan, Ben Pink, 
     Liz Pitts) 
Male IRB Teams Rescue Bronze Wrecked (James Birkmanis, 
     Jess Klessens, Monique 

     Morgan, Jack Palmer, Ben Pink,  
     Jake Silipo) 
 

State Endurance Championships (Scarboro) 
 

U/15 M Board Race  Silver Patrick Dart 
45-54 M Board Race  Bronze Brad Ravenscroft 
35-44 F Board Race  Gold Fiona Carroll 
45-54 F Board Race  Gold Tracey Shaw 

35-44 F Board Race  Silver Jette Oksis 

45-54 M 6km Ski Race  Silver Jon Standing 

U/15 F Swim Race  Silver Phoebe Ashworth 

35-44 F Swim Race  Gold Fiona Carroll 
45-54 F Swim Race  Gold Tracey Shaw 

45-54 M Swim Race  Bronze Brad Ravenscroft 
55+ M Swim Race  Silver Mark Lewis 

35-44 F Swim Race  Silver Jette Oksis 

35-44 F 2km Beach Run Silver Jette Oksis 
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Patrol Hours 2018- 2019 

James Currey  75.5 

Catherine Morgan 60 

Jette Oksis  57.75 

Scott Sheridan  56.5 

Jason Morgan  54 

Craig Ashworth 52.75 

Michael Dean  52.5 

Caroline Watson 50.75 

Amber Kinnane 49.5 

Zachariah Coleman 49.25 

Ashleigh Baker  49 

Spencer Cranston 49 

Etienne Prinsloo 48.75 

Kenneth Ringrose 45.5 

Jack Dowie  44.5 

Jake Silipo  44.25 

Matthew Coleman 42 

Clara Moody  41.5 

Jordan Dowie  41.5 

Phoebe Ashworth 41 

Sienna Ashe  40.75 

Archie Davis  40.5 

Bradley Dowie  40.5 

Christian Pansini 40.5 

Gabrielle Netto 40 

Jarrod Black  40 

Lawson Mills  40 

Luke de Laeter 40 

Sarah McKay  40 

Bronte Niven  39.5 

Cameron Birkholz 39.5 

John Skipsey  39.5 

Donovan Pryor  38.25 

Jacqui Sydes  38 

Sophia Rinaldi  38 

Neil Dickson  37.5 

Tracey Shaw  37.5 

Ruby Vyse  37 

Cheyne Cameron 36.75 

Anthony Watson 36.5 

David Carbon  36.5 

Jasmine Dundas 36.5 

Madelline Shaw 36.5 

Alison Webb  36 

Cooper Whiting 36 

David Martin  36 

Eamon Jack Wilkinson 36 

Elisabeth Pitts  36 

Emma Watson  36 

Jonathan Standing 36 

Kate Collins  36 

Kelly Aitken-Fox 36 

Liam Burke  36 

Marcin Gabriel  36 

Matthew Housham 36 

Olivia Power  36 

Timothy Angus 36 

Dave Creasy  35.75 

Annabelle Standing 35.5 

Asha Birkholz  35.5 

Sophie Craddock 35.5 

Stephanie Tory 35.5 

Luke Rodman  35.25 

Benedict Clarke 35 

Eliza Puzey  35 

Ethan Shaw  35 

Jack Palmer  35 

Luke Miller  35 

Niamh Duffy  35 

Liam Walsh  34.5 

Mark Sampson  34.5 

Martin Jackson  34.5 

Aaron Arbery  34.25 

Jamie Chambers 33.5 

Kate Purcell  33.5 

Stephen Simpson 33.5 

Dean Davidson  33.25 

Ian Clarke  33 

Scott Patterson 33 

Monique Morgan 32.58 

Sophie Woodhead 32.5 

Ray Webb  32 

Adam Connolly 31.75 

David McMahon 31.75 

Brooke Comerford 31.5 

Claire Ryan  31.5 

Ella Douglas  31.5 

Georgia Rothnie 31.5 

Graeme Rothnie 31.5 

Harriet Reeves  31.5 

Ian Hagen  31.5 

Ian Jackson  31.5 

James Birkmanis 31.5 

Jarrad Parsons  31.5 

Kevin Christensen 31.5 

Lauren Rothnie 31.5 

Mark Housham 31.5 

Mark Lewis  31.5 

Matthew Winner 31.5 

Meesha Rothnie 31.5 

Nick Klvana-Hooper 31.5 

Ruby Mavrick  31.5 

Jessica Simpson 31.5 

Hannah Lea  31 

Holly Baker  31 

Jarrod Ng  31 

Lily Skipsey  31 

Jason Dean  30.75 

Michael Shaw  30.75 

India Niven  30.5 

Kieren Smith  30.5 

Pierce Gavin  30.5 

Dylan Ewart  30 

Ian McLachlan  30 

Tessa Canci  30 

Thomas Gleeson 30 

Kitty Eichner  29.5 

Abbey Henderson 29 

Justine Harris  29 

Mal Currey  29 

William Shaw  29 

Philip Chen  28.75 

Anne-Marie Nunes 28.5 

Hayley Wallwork 28.5 

Kate Temme  28.5 

Lachlan Sampson 28.5 

Lauren Hart  28.5 

Lily Klvana-Hooper 28.5 

Remy Ferguson 28.5 

Sara Shea  28.5 

Sean Dickson  28.5 

Andrew Halsall 28.25 

John Marsh  28.25 

Andrew Robson 28 

Carys Bowers  28 

James Morgon  28 

Joseph Wooden 28 

Lorena D'Amato 28 

Maia Roberts  28 

Tupou Chong Sue 28 

Matt Elliott  27.75 

Joanne Niven  27.5 

Alec Davison  27 

Alexander Winner 27 

Bianca Valencia 27 

Brett Douglas  27 

Caitlyn Rothnie 27 

Callum Wilkinson 27 

Carly Pizzuto  27 

Chris Wilson  27 

Emma Wright  27 

Grace Keogh  27 

Harrison Hynes 27 

Jason Johansson 27 

Jessica Klessens 27 

Jessica Leng  27 

Jessica Wilkes  27 

John Price  27 

John Summers  27 

Joshua Crevola 27 

Lucas Brown  27 

Maddisyn O'Grady 27 

Mark Pitts  27 

Maryann Kelleher 27 

Mikaela Spires  27 

Monique D'Amato 27 

Nathan Cicanese 27 

Noah Van Ooran 27 

Rebecca Pretorius 27 

Samantha Carbon 27 

Tannah Growdon 27 

Brooklyn Barr  26.5 

Carola Penman 26.5 

Ian Hart  26.5 

Kevin Housham 26.5 

Lachlann Penman 26.5 

Michael Burke  26.5 

Millie Sales  26.5 

Rebecca Brook 26.5 

Hannah Murray 26 

Katie Grayson  26 

Meg Rawlings  26 

Nicholas Watson 26 

Sascha Martin  26 

Fiona Carroll  25.75 

Jack Hadley  25.5 

Ross Kirby  25.5 

Tamsin Keevill  25 

Che Connolly  24.5 

George Nicholson 24.5 

Joshua Douglas 24.5 

Lachlan Stein  24.5 

Liliana Cottino  24.5 

Roan O'Hehir  24.5 

David Moody  24.25 

Johann Szymanski 24.23 

Patrick Dart  23.75 

Sherief Khorshid 23.75 

Chris Cleave  23.5 

Kate Silipo  23.5 

Kirsty Hendry  23.5 

Robyn Stotten  23.5 

Rowen Cross  23.5 

Alexandra Versteeg 22.5 

Andrew Pitchford 22.5 

Argyle Sivewright 22.5 

Brad Rothnie  22.5 

D'Arcy Wilson  22.5 

Darryl Salisbury 22.5 

Dylan Mahney  22.5 

Gavin Blake  22.5 

Gosia Gabriel  22.5 

Harry Pitts  22.5 

Isabella Gaunt  22.5 

Jessie Mudie  22.5 

Joanne Ashworth 22.5 

Kate Chambers 22.5 

Kelton Rothnie  22.5 

Laura Gale  22.5 

Lauren Richards 22.5 

Mimi Harries  22.5 

Molly Shepherd 22.5 

Nathan Mahney 22.5 

Nicholas Wilson 22.5 

Nick Lonie  22.5 

Sheridan Robson 22.5 

Tanita Rodman 22.5 

Timothy Macknay 22.5 

Arabella Marsh  22 

Bianca Jervis  22 

Gil Wainwright  22 

Hayden Ferguson 22 

James Hickey  22 

Jayda Jakovich 22 

Jordan Kohler  22 

Kelly Rawlings  22 

Mitchell Harvey 22 

Nicholas Dart  22 

Paul Grayson  22 

Sarah Brown  22 

Joel Moore  21.75 

Ruby Fegan  21.75 

Abbey Green  21.5 

Gavin Folley  21.5 

Tessa Miotti  21.5 

Tim Gibbons  21.5 

Claudia Turner  21 

Hugo Clarke  21 

Joe Elliott-Tideman 21 

Natalie Crellin  21 

Zac Evans  21 

Andy McIntyre  20.25 

Alexander Armstrong 20 

Allegra Biagioni 20 

Amy Browning  20 

Stella Watson  20 

Mathew Pantony 19.75 

Elijah Stockden 19.5 

Linda Clark  19.5 

Nathan Harding 19.5 

Neil Ferguson  19.5 

Richard Dreverman 19.5 

Isla Krieser  19.25 

Alisha Morgan  19.12 

Charlotte Gibbons 18.5 

Cody Palmer  18.5 

Amelia Carroll  18 

Bridie Duffy  18 

Charles Casale  18 

Chelsea Waideman 18 

Cooper Jackson 18 

Douglas Preston 18 

Eliza Wieser  18 

Emily Short  18 

Finn Hussey  18 

Holly Bacon  18 

Jack Della-Marta 18 

Jonathan Kay  18 

Kai O'Loughlin  18 

Karen Carmody 18 

Liam Pizzirani  18 

Madeleine Stockden 18 

Noah Masters  18 

Prideaux Joyce 18 

Robert Atkins  18 

Trinity Chisholm 18 

Zan Gamble  18 

Zoe Jaques  18 

Amelie Prinsloo 17.5 

Brad Ravenscroft 17.5 

Ciara Sadler  17.5 

Emma de Laeter 17.5 

Kevin Niven  17.5 

Patric Horne  17.5 

Rosalind Lea  17.5 

Sam Davis  17.5 

Shea Kershaw  17.5 

Tully Jackson  17.5 

Xavier Bradshaw-Pini 17.5 

Charlotte Broad 17 

Angus McLachlan 16.5 

Emma Moir  16 

Hitesh Madan  16 

Kenneth Cheney 16 

Rob Blascetta  16 

April Lea  15.5 

Ashleigh Farrell 15.5 

Jessica Gooding 15.5 

Lachlan Auld  15.5 

Lily Chatel-Kemp 15.5 

Mark Scott  15.5 

Thea Whitby  15.5 
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Alexandra Casey 15 

Riley Stotten  15 

Barry Carbon  14 

Sally Clark  14 

Natalia Nolan  13.78 

Aldi Prinsloo  13.75 

Aulula Hansen Gregg 13.5 

Cherie McLachlan 13.5 

David Gunther  13.5 

Ellie Fry  13.5 

Erin Jameson  13.5 

Finn McIntyre  13.5 

Fynn Copp  13.5 

Hamish Ravenscroft 13.5 

Jasmine Ellery  13.5 

Jazmyn Uden  13.5 

Lucia Short  13.5 

Luke Collins  13.5 

Nicola Rutty  13.5 

Paris Chisholm  13.5 

Robert Dropulich 13.5 

Sally Audeyev  13.5 

Samuel Wichmann 13.5 

Sophia Whimp  13.5 

Lara Sivwright  13.25 

Aimee Moody  13 

Aklie Braddock 13 

Crosby Brandis 13 

Leanne Coverley-Brandis 13 

Matthew Divirgilio 13 

Milan Bazley  13 

Todd Ross  12.5 

Alec Vukovich  12 

Cooper Martin  12 

David Chitty  12 

Julian D'Amato  12 

Penny Fegan  11.75 

Madoc Lanfear Appleby 11.5 

Edie Gabrielson 11 

Eliza Prall  11 

Katelyn Barbato 11 

Meg de Laeter  11 

Tessa Chapman 11 

Roy Sojan  10.5 

Sophie Miller  10.5 

Mark Casey  10 

Payman Hasani 10 

Glen Peake  9.5 

Sienna Menin  9.5 

Tia Donovan  9.5 

Kelly Hiles  9.25 

Alicia Tory  9 

Brielle Stokes  9 

Eryn Kavanagh  9 

Ethan Walsh  9 

Geoff Brook  9 

James Rock  9 

Kimberley Standing 9 

Madison Gleeson 9 

Max Cherrington 9 

Per Wilson  9 

Rachel Hatton  9 

Samantha Dallimore 9 

Shenae Marsh  9 

Sienna Hart  9 

Tegan Clarke  9 

William White  9 

Henry Louden  8.5 

Kate Burke  8.5 

Mitchell Parker  8.5 

Nathan Frankel 8.5 

Chris Merry  8 

Geoff Davey  8 

Absalom Bazley 7.58 

Darren Stotten  7.5 

Darcy Osborne  6.5 

Nicki Xanthis  6.5 

Scarlett Loader 6.5 

Thomas Reid  6.5 

Alison Auld  6 

Lisa Highman  6 

Michele Piaccia 6 

Joel Folley  5.75 

Lee Jasson  5.75 

Ravi Bhatt  5.75 

Bradley Fry  5.5 

Mark Peters  5.5 

Robin Sears  5.5 

Alasdair Penman 4.5 

Alex Neve  4.5 

Annie Tubby  4.5 

Ben Siford  4.5 

Benjamin Heatley 4.5 

Benjamin Pink  4.5 

Bianca Zoiti  4.5 

Brianna Divirgilio 4.5 

Darcy Pickett  4.5 

Eliza Moir  4.5 

Eric Chapman  4.5 

Georgie King  4.5 

Joseph Coleman 4.5 

Joshua Troy  4.5 

Kim Bingham  4.5 

Kynan Chesterton 4.5 

Luke Strahan  4.5 

Maddison Weldon 4.5 

Maeve McKenna 4.5 

Mathew John  4.5 

Matthew Flowers 4.5 

Maya Barnett  4.5 

Mitchell Bell  4.5 

Sandra Miller  4.5 

Simon Douse  4.5 

Sophie Mattingly 4.5 

Sophie Preston 4.5 

Sullivan Stoner  4.5 

Tadhg McCarthy 4.5 

Thomas Heatley 4.5 

Tim Hollick  4.5 

Tom Casey  4.5 

Tom Matthews  4.5 

Anna Armitage  4 

Dennis Weaver 4 

Lily Stackhouse 4 

Melanie Smith  4 

David Court  3.5 

Abby Hennighan 2 

Alison Jarvis  2 

Anugus Dorrian 2 

Susan Collins  1.5 

Peter Hanbidge 0.75 

 

Total   9890.3 
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Lifesaving Awards 2018- 2019 

15 Year Officiating Service Certificate 

  

Peter Wyburn WA10860011 8/01/2019 

 

30 Year Long Service Award 

  

Jason Johansson WA10859982 16/11/2018 

 

5 Year Officiating Service Certificate 

 

Barbara Whipp WA10860012 8/01/2019 

 

50 Year Long Service Award 

  

Carol Duffield WA10859977 16/11/2018 

Colin Duffield WA10859978 16/11/2018 

Colin Moysey WA10859979 16/11/2018 

Graham Walton WA10859980 16/11/2018 

Gregory Whipp WA10859981 16/11/2018 

 

Certificate II in Public Safety (Aquatic Rescue) 
 

Benedict Clarke WA10928403 15/03/2019 

 

Certificate IV in Training and Assessment (TAE40116) 
 

John Summers WA10832363 22/10/2018 

Michael Shaw WA10832179 23/10/2018 

 

National Leaders Masterclass 

  

Jack Dowie 10720131 16/09/2018 

Jodie Pink 10720138 16/09/2018 

 

Advanced Resuscitation Techniques [AID] 
 

Kelly Aitken-Fox WA10833093 30/11/2018 

Matthew Housham WA10857286 3/12/2018 

Rebecca Brook WA10817646 13/12/2018 

Craig Ashworth WA10914456 17/12/2018 

Michael Burke WA10914457 17/12/2018 

David Carbon WA10914458 17/12/2018 

Dean Davidson WA10914459 17/12/2018 

Jack Dowie WA10914460 17/12/2018 

Rachelle Doyle WA10914461 17/12/2018 

Philippa Hawson WA10914462 17/12/2018 

Jason Johansson WA10914463 17/12/2018 

Maryann Kelleher WA10914464 17/12/2018 

Catherine Morgan WA10914465 17/12/2018 

Jason Morgan WA10914466 17/12/2018 

Anne-Marie Nunes WA10914467 17/12/2018 

Sophie Preston WA10914468 17/12/2018 

Mark Regel WA10914469 17/12/2018 

Madelline Shaw WA10914470 17/12/2018 

Jessica Simpson WA10914471 17/12/2018 

Argyle Sivewright WA10914472 17/12/2018 

Madeleine Stockden WA10914473 17/12/2018 

John Summers WA10914474 17/12/2018 

Callum Wilkinson WA10914475 17/12/2018 

Kate Burke WA10885099 19/12/2018 

Liam Burke WA10885102 19/12/2018 

James Currey WA10885120 19/12/2018 

Zac Evans WA10885129 19/12/2018 

Kevin Christensen WA10904781 2/02/2019 

Neil Dickson WA10904784 2/02/2019 

Emma Moir WA10904805 2/02/2019 

Ray Webb WA10904808 2/02/2019 

Jessica Klessens WA10922676 26/02/2019 

Timothy Macknay WA10922677 26/02/2019 

Lawson Mills WA10922678 26/02/2019 

Eliza Puzey WA10922679 26/02/2019 

Ethan Shaw WA10922680 26/02/2019 

Michael Shaw WA10922681 26/02/2019 

Jacqui Sydes WA10922682 26/02/2019 

Caroline Watson WA10922683 26/02/2019 

Chris Wilson WA10922684 26/02/2019 

 

Bronze Medallion 

 

Joshua Crevola WA10767370 30/09/2018 

James Currey WA10767371 30/09/2018 

Hannah Lea WA10767372 30/09/2018 

Kai O'Loughlin WA10767373 30/09/2018 

Carly Pizzuto WA10767374 30/09/2018 

Ethan Shaw WA10767375 30/09/2018 

Kate Silipo WA10767396 30/09/2018 

Mikaela Spires WA10767376 30/09/2018 

Hannah Lea WA10767372 7/10/2018 

Jarrod Black WA10874527 8/12/2018 

Geoff Brook WA10874528 8/12/2018 

Philip Chen WA10874529 8/12/2018 

Kevin Christensen WA10896868 8/12/2018 

Benedict Clarke WA10874530 8/12/2018 

Rowen Cross WA10874531 8/12/2018 

Neil Dickson WA10874532 8/12/2018 

Gosia Gabriel WA10874533 8/12/2018 

Ian Hart  WA10874534 8/12/2018 

Timothy Macknay WA10874535 8/12/2018 

Cherie McLachlan WA10874536 8/12/2018 

Sandra Miller WA10874537 8/12/2018 

Emma Moir WA10874538 8/12/2018 

James Morgon WA10874539 8/12/2018 

Todd Ross WA10874540 8/12/2018 

Ray Webb WA10874541 8/12/2018 

Cara Winnall WA10874542 8/12/2018 

Anna Armitage WA10893125 9/12/2018 

Amelia Carroll WA10893126 9/12/2018 

Kate Chambers WA10893127 9/12/2018 

Tupou Chong Sue WA10893128 9/12/2018 

Liliana Cottino WA10893129 9/12/2018 

Monique D'Amato WA10893130 9/12/2018 

Zoe Dyer WA10893131 9/12/2018 

Zac Evans WA10893132 9/12/2018 

Tannah Growdon WA10893133 9/12/2018 

Justine Harris WA10893134 9/12/2018 

Finn Hussey WA10893135 9/12/2018 

Henry Louden WA10893136 9/12/2018 

Noah Masters WA10893137 9/12/2018 

Tadhg McCarthy WA10893138 9/12/2018 

Kate Purcell WA10893139 9/12/2018 

Sophia Rinaldi WA10893140 9/12/2018 

Maia Roberts WA10893141 9/12/2018 

Millie Sales WA10893142 9/12/2018 

Ruby Vyse WA10893143 9/12/2018 

Hayley Wallwork WA10893144 9/12/2018 

Alison Webb WA10893145 9/12/2018 

Sienna Ashe WA10897427 20/01/2019 

Absalom Bazley WA10897428 20/01/2019 

Rob Blascetta WA10897429 20/01/2019 

Charlotte Broad WA10897430 20/01/2019 

Madeleine Brook WA10897431 20/01/2019 

Amy Browning WA10897432 20/01/2019 

German Bucheli WA10897433 20/01/2019 

Kynan Chesterton WA10897434 20/01/2019 

Jason Dean WA10897435 20/01/2019 

Niamh Duffy WA10897436 20/01/2019 

Lily Klvana-Hooper WA10897438 20/01/2019 

Nicholas Klvana-Hooper WA10897439 20/01/2019 

Jordan Kohler WA10897440 20/01/2019 

Luke Miller WA10893165 20/01/2019 

Gabrielle Netto WA10893166 20/01/2019 

Bronte Niven WA10897442 20/01/2019 

Hassan Sillem WA10897443 20/01/2019 

Matthew Winner WA10897444 20/01/2019 

 

First Aid [AID] 
 

Caroline Watson WA10696940 21/04/2018 

Molly Shepherd WA10698323 19/05/2018 

Sascha Martin WA10887411 23/05/2018 

Michael Loubser WA10710706 29/05/2018 

Ian Mansfield WA10711147 28/07/2018 

Caitlyn Rothnie WA10715372 18/08/2018 

Kelton Rothnie WA10715376 18/08/2018 

Meesha Rothnie WA10715380 18/08/2018 

Ray Webb WA10725691 15/09/2018 

Helen Airey WA10857878 8/12/2018 

Toni Webb WA10886336 19/01/2019 

Philip Chen WA10928897 9/03/2019 

Sam Coppin WA10928905 9/03/2019 

Paul Grayson WA10928933 9/03/2019 

Mark Regel WA10928945 9/03/2019 

Chitra Suppiah WA10928957 9/03/2019 

 

IRB Crew Certificate 

 

Nicola Rutty WA10698586 1/05/2018 

Rebecca Brook WA10698587 12/05/2018 

Matthew Coleman WA10698588 12/05/2018 

Michael Dean WA10698589 12/05/2018 

Jasmine Dundas WA10698590 12/05/2018 

Amber Kinnane WA10698591 12/05/2018 

Ross Kirby WA10698592 12/05/2018 

Ian McLachlan WA10698593 12/05/2018 

Clara Moody WA10698594 12/05/2018 

Spencer Cranston WA10861150 17/11/2018 

Dave Creasy WA10861151 17/11/2018 

James Currey WA10861152 17/11/2018 

Luke de Laeter WA10861153 17/11/2018 

Ethan Shaw WA10861154 17/11/2018 

Kate Silipo WA10861155 17/11/2018 

Cheyne Cameron WA10962327 17/03/2019 

Jason Dean WA10962328 17/03/2019 

Niamh Duffy WA10962329 17/03/2019 

Jordan Kohler WA10962330 17/03/2019 

Hannah Lea WA10962331 17/03/2019 

Timothy MacknayWA10962332 17/03/2019 

Andy McIntyre WA10962333 17/03/2019 

Lawson Mills WA10962334 17/03/2019 

Bronte Niven WA10962335 17/03/2019 

Kate Purcell WA10962336 17/03/2019 

Eliza Puzey WA10962337 17/03/2019 

Millie Sales WA10962338 17/03/2019 

Hayley Wallwork  WA10962339 17/03/2019 

Ray Webb WA10962340 17/03/2019 

Joseph Wooden WA10962341 17/03/2019 

Alison Webb WA10962342 17/03/2019 

 

Pain Management Certificate 

 

Stephen Simpson WA10714334 20/08/2018 

Rebecca Brook WA10830302 7/12/2018 

Sarah Brown WA10921091 18/12/2018 

Joanne Jameson WA10921092 18/12/2018 

John Skipsey WA10921093 18/12/2018 

Madeleine StockdenWA10921094 18/12/2018 

Sascha Martin WA10896821 20/01/2019 

Aimee Clarke WA10960250 5/03/2019 

Caroline Watson WA10960251 5/03/2019 

Ray Webb WA10960252 5/03/2019 

Lawson Mills WA10960253 5/03/2019 

 

Provide advanced resuscitation (HLTAID007) 
 

Kelly Aitken-Fox WA10833091 30/11/2018 

Matthew Housham WA10849115 3/12/2018 

Kate Burke WA10885097 19/12/2018 

Liam Burke WA10885100 19/12/2018 

James Currey WA10885118 19/12/2018 

Zac Evans WA10885127 19/12/2018 

Kevin Christensen WA10904779 2/02/2019 

Neil Dickson WA10904782 2/02/2019 

Emma Moir WA10904803 2/02/2019 

Ray Webb WA10904806 2/02/2019 

 

Rescue Water Craft Operator Certificate 

  

Robin Sears WA10913325 13/10/2018 

Madelline Shaw WA10913326 13/10/2018 

 

Safeguarding Children -Young People Awareness 

 

Penny Fegan WA10798625 14/10/2018 

 

Safer Surf Clubs Online Part 2 

  

Max Cherrington WA10791804 29/11/2018 

 

Safer Surf Clubs Online Part 3 

 

Max Cherrington WA10793711 1/12/2018 

 

Safer Surf Clubs Online Part 4 

 

Max Cherrington WA10793710 1/12/2018 

 

Silver Medallion IRB Driver 
 

Bradley Dowie WA10706319 7/07/2018 

Etienne Prinsloo WA10706320 7/07/2018 

Sheridan Robson WA10706321 7/07/2018 

Jake Silipo WA10706322 7/07/2018 

D'Arcy Wilson WA10706323 7/07/2018 

Paul Grayson WA10861683 10/11/2018 

 

Spinal Management 
 

Joel Moore WA10691354 7/04/2018 

Kelly Aitken-Fox WA10748702 22/10/2018 

 

SS - ASADA level 1 Anti doping  
 

Darren Miller WA10709685 9/08/2018 

 

SS - ASC Officiating General Principles 

 

Jette Oksis WA10706577 23/07/2018 

Chris Merry WA10737267 16/10/2018 

Alison Auld WA10878560 21/01/2019 
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SS - Core Official 
 

Jette Oksis WA10706578 23/07/2018 

Chris Merry WA10737268 16/10/2018 

Alison Auld WA10878561 21/01/2019 

 

SS - Development Coach Beach (Online Modules) 
 

Erin Jameson WA10708875 3/08/2018 

Michael Shaw WA10860310 8/01/2019 

Tully Jackson WA10713468 31/08/2018 

Craig Ashworth WA10888260 28/01/2019 

 

SS - Development Coach Online Theory Modules 

 

Tully Jackson WA10713467 31/08/2018 

Robert Myers WA10734440 14/10/2018 

Craig Ashworth WA10740838 19/10/2018 

Zachariah Coleman WA10842775 29/12/2018 

 

SS - Development Coach Surf Boat  
 

Darren Miller WA10709686 9/08/2018 

 

SS - S2 Boat Sweep Accreditation 

 

Robert Myers WA10777652 19/11/2018 

 

SS - S3 Boat Sweep Accreditation 

 

Darren Miller WA10709687 9/08/2018 

 

SS - Senior Official 
 

Craig Ashworth WA10777582 19/11/2018 

 

SS - Senior Official Online Theory Modules 

 

Craig Ashworth WA10777623 19/11/2018 

 

Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed) 
 

Ravi Bhatt WA10884775 3/11/2018 

Rob Blascetta WA10884776 3/11/2018 

David Chitty WA10884777 3/11/2018 

Geoff Davey WA10884778 3/11/2018 

Hitesh Madan WA10884779 3/11/2018 

Chris Merry WA10884780 3/11/2018 

Melanie Smith WA10884781 3/11/2018 

Lachlan Auld WA10885043 9/12/2018 

Katelyn Barbato WA10885044 9/12/2018 

Brooklyn Barr WA10885045 9/12/2018 

Milan Bazley WA10885046 9/12/2018 

Lily Chatel-Kemp WA10885047 9/12/2018 

Sally Clark WA10885048 9/12/2018 

Hugo Clarke WA10885049 9/12/2018 

Julian D'Amato WA10885050 9/12/2018 

Jason Dean WA10885051 9/12/2018 

Jack Della-Marta WA10885052 9/12/2018 

Sean Dickson WA10885053 9/12/2018 

Robert Dropulich WA10885054 9/12/2018 

Bridie Duffy WA10885055 9/12/2018 

Jasmine Ellery WA10885056 9/12/2018 

Isabella Gaunt WA10885057 9/12/2018 

Jessica Gooding WA10885058 9/12/2018 

Jack Hadley WA10885059 9/12/2018 

Aulula Hansen Gregg WA10885060 9/12/2018 

Sienna Hart WA10885061 9/12/2018 

James Hickey WA10885062 9/12/2018 

Madoc Lanfear Appleby WA10885063 9/12/2018 

April Lea WA10885064 9/12/2018 

Sophie Mattingly WA10885065 9/12/2018 

Maeve McKenna WA10885066 9/12/2018 

Angus McLachlan WA10885067 9/12/2018 

Sienna Menin WA10885068 9/12/2018 

Aimee Moody WA10885069 9/12/2018 

Alex Neve WA10885070 9/12/2018 

George Nicholson WA10885071 9/12/2018 

Lucas O'Keeffe WA10885072 9/12/2018 

Liam Pizzirani WA10885073 9/12/2018 

Thomas Reid WA10885074 9/12/2018 

Riley Stotten WA10885075 9/12/2018 

Johann Szymanski WA10885076 9/12/2018 

Alicia Tory WA10885077 9/12/2018 

Claudia Turner WA10885078 9/12/2018 

Ethan Walsh WA10885079 9/12/2018 

Thea Whitby WA10885080 9/12/2018 

Emma Wright WA10885081 9/12/2018 

Eric Chapman WA10923718 16/12/2018 

Ashleigh Farrell WA10923719 16/12/2018 

Hayden Ferguson WA10923720 16/12/2018 

Destinee Hayes WA10923721 16/12/2018 

Benjamin Heatley WA10923722 16/12/2018 

Isla Krieser WA10923723 16/12/2018 

Scarlett Loader WA10923724 16/12/2018 

Cooper Martin WA10923725 16/12/2018 

Sophie Miller WA10923726 16/12/2018 

Natalia Nolan WA10923727 16/12/2018 

Darcy Osborne WA10923728 16/12/2018 

Harriet Reeves WA10923729 16/12/2018 

Lily Stackhouse WA10923730 16/12/2018 

Elijah Stockden WA10923731 16/12/2018 

Noah Van Ooran WA10923732 16/12/2018 

Maddison Weldon WA10923733 16/12/2018 

Sophia Whimp WA10923734 16/12/2018 

Eliza Wieser WA10923735 16/12/2018 

Max Cherrington WA10954373 27/02/2018 

Meg de Laeter WA10954374 27/02/2018 

Joel Folley WA10954375 27/02/2018 

Lara Sivwright WA10954376 27/02/2018 

Luke Strahan WA10954377 27/02/2018 

 

Junior Activities Age Manager - Online Theory 

 

Joel Moore WA10674279 7/04/2018 

Donovan Pryor WA10691175 2/05/2018 

James Currey WA10734372 14/10/2018 

Penny Fegan WA10734459 14/10/2018 

James Morgon WA10781742 21/11/2018 

Spencer Cranston WA10783934 22/11/2018 

Zoe Campbell WA10785110 23/11/2018 

Gabrielle Blyth WA10883617 23/01/2019 

Ruben Piva WA10902464 11/02/2019 

 

WA Facilitator ART [AID] 
 

Michael Shaw WA10922952 26/02/2019 

 

WA Silver Medallion Beach Management 
 

Spencer Cranston WA10920208 15/12/2018 

Paul Grayson WA10920211 15/12/2018 

 

WA Training Officer (Bronze Medallion) 
 

Liam Burke WA10849107 5/12/2018 

John Skipsey WA10908765 5/02/2019 

Bronze Medallion assessment 



DO YOU LIKE THE PICTURES IN THE ANNUAL REPORT ? 

If you like the photographs you see in the Annual Report, most of them come courtesy of our Club photographer, Tony Bowers. Tony does 
an outstanding job recording the life and times at Fremantle Surf Club. Tony's photos are available on his Smugmug site. The web address 
is http://freosurf.smugmug.com. The site is password-protected. The password can be obtained from Administration at the Club or ask 
any Board Director or Age Group Manager. 



 Thanks to our major sponsors for 2019 

from all of us ! 


